
Participating School Districts:      Huntington Beach Union / Irvine / Newport-Mesa / Saddleback Valley / Tustin Unified 

Board of Trustees:    Bonnie Castrey / Lauren Brooks / Michelle Barto / Suzie Swartz / Lynn Davis 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

AGENDA 

March 9, 2023 

8:45 a.m. Closed Session 
9:30 a.m. Open Session  



1001 Presidio Square, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 · (714) 979-1955 · www.coastlinerop.net Brian K. Dozer, D.Mgt. Superintendent 

TO: Board of Trustees 

FROM: Brian Dozer 

DATE: March 2, 2023 

SUBJECT: Board Package 

Enclosed are the agenda and supporting materials for the Thursday, March 9, 2023, 
regular Board of Trustees meeting. The board meeting will begin with a closed session at 
8:45 a.m. Open session is scheduled to begin at 9:30 a.m. 

I am looking forward to seeing you on Thursday, March 9, 2023. 

Enclosure 

Participating School Districts: Huntington Beach Union / Irvine / Newport-Mesa / Saddleback Valley / Tustin Unified 

Board of Trustees:  Bonnie Castrey / Lauren Brooks / Michelle Barto / Suzie Swartz / Lynn Davis 

http://www.coastlinerop.net/


COASTLINE REGIONAL OCCUPATIONAL PROGRAM 
Paul E. Snyder Administrative Center, 1001 Presidio Square, Costa Mesa 92626-1584 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
Thursday, March 9, 2023 
8:45 a.m. Closed Session 
9:30 a.m.  Open Session 

PUBLIC COMMUNICATION TO THE BOARD - Anyone desiring to address the Board on any item will be granted three minutes to make 
a presentation to the Board. If the topic relates to a particular agenda item, you have the option of requesting to be called upon to make 
your remarks at the time the item is discussed by the Board. (Education Code §35145.5, Government Code §5495.3) 

Meetings are recorded for use in the official minutes. 

AGENDA 

1. BOARD MEETING CALLED TO ORDER

Meeting is called to order by _______________________________    at  _______ a.m.

2. ROLL CALL: Michelle Barto, President   _____ 
Suzie Swartz, Vice President  _____ 
Bonnie Castrey, Clerk _____ 
Lauren Brooks, Member  _____ 
Jonathan Stone, Alternate Member _____ 

Coastline ROP: Brian Dozer, Superintendent 
J. S. Coke, Director of Educational Services 
Sesar Morfin, Director of Business Services 

3. PUBLIC COMMENT ON CLOSED SESSION ITEMS – Anyone desiring to address the
Board on any closed session item will be granted three minutes to make a presentation to
the Board.

4. CLOSED SESSION   Discussion 
A. Public Employee Evaluation: Modification of Contract: Director of Business Services

(Government Code §54957)
B. Public Employee Employment/Discipline/Dismissal/Release (Government Code §54957)
C. Public Employee Evaluation: Superintendent, Midyear Evaluation – Strategic Priorities

(Government Code §54957)

5. RECONVENE IN OPEN SESSION   Discussion 
A. Reporting out of Closed Session

6. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

7. ADOPTION OF AGENDA – Recommend the agenda be adopted as submitted.

Motion by__________________   Seconded by_________________    Vote_______

8. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Anyone desiring to address the Board on any item not on the
agenda will be granted three minutes to make a presentation to the Board.



INFORMATION ITEMS 

9. SUPERINTENDENT’S REPORT – Brian Dozer

10. EDUCATIONAL SERVICES’ UPDATE – J. S. Coke

DISCUSSION/ACTION ITEMS 

        Discussion 11. AB 361- Brown Act Amendment

12. Board Meeting Date/Time Changes Discussion/Action 

Motion by__________________   Seconded by_________________    Vote_______ 

13. Second Interim Budget – Recommend the Board approve Discussion/Action 
a positive certification for the second interim budget, as
presented, with appropriate criteria and standards.

Motion by__________________   Seconded by_________________    Vote_______ 

14. K12 Strong Workforce Program (SWP) Sub-Agreement Discussion/Action 
Recommend the Board approve the sub-agreement with
Rancho Santiago Community College District for
Round 5 K12 SWP grant funds.

Motion by__________________   Seconded by_________________    Vote_______ 

15. Modification of Contract – Recommend the Board approve Discussion/Action 
a modification to the contract for Sesar Morfin, including a change
in title from Director of Business Services to Chief Business Official.

Motion by__________________   Seconded by_________________    Vote_______ 

16. Accounts Payable Clerk – Recommend the Board approve Discussion/Action 
the new Accounts Payable Clerk position and the enclosed job
description.

Motion by__________________   Seconded by_________________    Vote_______ 

17. Revision to Coastline ROP Compensation Schedule Discussion/Action 
Recommend the Board approve the revised compensation
schedule as presented.

Motion by__________________   Seconded by_________________   Vote_______ 

18. Logo Competition   Discussion 

RESOLUTION CONSENT CALENDAR   Action 

All matters listed under the Resolution Consent Calendar are considered by the Board to be items 
that will be enacted by the Board in one motion.  There will be no discussion of these items prior to 
the time the Board votes on the motion unless members of the Board or staff request specific items 
be discussed and removed from the Resolution Consent Calendar.  

It is recommended the Board approve: 

19. Resolution #4 / 2022-2023: Budget Adjustment



20. Resolution #5 / 2022-2023: Budget Transfer
21. Resolution #6 / 2022-2023: Signature Authorization

Motion by _____________________ Seconded by ______________________ 

_____ 
_____ 
_____ 
_____ 

Votes:  
Member Barto  
Member Swartz 
Member Castrey 
Member Brooks 
Member Stone _____ 

CONSENT CALENDAR Action 

All matters listed under the Consent Calendar are considered by the Board to be items that will be 
enacted by the Board in one motion.  There will be no discussion of these items prior to the time the 
Board votes on the motion unless members of the Board or staff request specific items be discussed 
and/or removed from the Consent Calendar. 
It is recommended that the Board approve: 

22. Minutes from February 16, 2023, Board of Trustees meeting
23. Ratification of purchase order report ending February 28, 2023
24. Ratification of check report ending February 28, 2023
25. Field trip requests for Ocean View High School Culinary Arts students to attend the FCCLA 

State Leadership Conference in Riverside, CA, on April 22 -25, 2023
26. Inventory deletion report
27. Personnel Register #8 – 2022-2023 (Approval of employee appointments, release, 

retirements, terminations, leaves, transfers, promotions, stipends, additional/overtime 
assignments)
Motion by__________________   Seconded by_________________    Vote_______

NEW BUSINESS Information 

ADJOURNMENT 

Motion by_________________ Seconded by_________________ Vote_______ at ____a.m. 

Next Scheduled Meeting:  April 20, 2023 

Public Records related to the public session agenda that is distributed to the Governing Board less than 72 hours before a 
regular meeting may be inspected by the public at 1001 Presidio Square, Costa Mesa, during normal business hours 
(7:30 a.m. to 4:30 p.m.) or on our website https://www.coastlinerop.net/ 

https://www.coastlinerop.net/


COASTLINE REGIONAL OCCUPATIONAL PROGRAM 
2023 BOARD CALENDAR 

January 19 (3rd Thursday) - Board Meeting

February 16 (3rd Thursday) - Board Meeting
Textbook Inventory

March 9 (2nd Thursday) - Board Meeting
Interim Budget Review
2022-23 Coastline ROP Priorities Update

April 20 (3rd Thursday) - Board Meeting

May 18 (3rd Thursday) - Board Meeting
Review Superintendent’s Evaluation Process
Employ Summer Semester Staff

June 15 (3rd Thursday) - Board Meeting
Public Hearing for 2023-2024 Budget
Adopt 2023-2024 Budget
Authorize Superintendent to Approve Travel and
Conferences
2023-2024 School Calendar
Discussion of Superintendent’s Evaluation
Interagency Agreements Appendix A for 2023-2024

July 20 (3rd Thursday) - Board Meeting

August 17 (3rd Thursday) - Board Meeting
Administrative Contract Extensions
Board Input for 2023-2024 Coastline ROP Priorities

September 14 (2nd Thursday) - Board Meeting
Superintendent’s Evaluation
2022-2023 Unaudited Actuals Report

October 19 (3rd Thursday) - Board Meeting

November 16 (3rd Thursday) - Board Meeting

December 14 (2nd Thursday) - Organizational Meeting
Audit Report
Interim Budget Review

Meeting Time: 9:30 a.m. 

Board approved: 12/15/2022 

12.0



1001 Presidio Square, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 · (714) 979-1955 · www.coastlinerop.net     Brian K. Dozer, D.Mgt. Superintendent 

TO: Board of Trustees 

FROM: Sesar Morfin 

DATE:  February 28, 2023 

SUBJECT: Second Interim Report – January 31, 2023 

In accordance with state financial reporting requirements, attached is the Second 
Interim Budget report covering the period of July 1, 2022, to January 31, 2023. The 
interim report allows us to make any necessary revisions to the budget and determine if 
necessary levels of cash are available to meet our expenditure obligations. 

This budget meets the Criteria and Standards for interim reports designated by the 
California Department of Education. Analysis shows that both the cash balance and the 
fund balance will be positive at the close of the fiscal year. Available unrestricted 
reserves for economic uncertainties are estimated to exceed the minimum requirement 
of 5.0 percent. 

The estimated change in the current operating budget reflects an increase in revenue 
and a decrease in expenditures. The current board-approved operating budget 
assumes a surplus of revenues over expenditures in the amount of $660,881. The 
Second Interim Report projects an overall surplus of revenues over expenditures in the 
amount of $708,334, or an increase in the projected surplus of $47,463 to the board-
approved budget for the 2022-2023 year.  An important factor to consider is the fact that 
included within the board-approved budget for 2022-2023 was the remaining 
supplemental Covid-19 relief monies from the 2021-2022 year which were 
approximately $2.3 million.  These funds need to be spent by June of 2023.  The board 
approved that any remaining unspent supplemental Covid-19 relief monies which were 
not allocated for a specific purpose be used to fund our general operating expenditures 
(salaries, benefits, supplies, etc.) in the 2021-2022 year.  As the 2022-2023 budget was 
prepared, certain expenditures were included in the supplemental Covid-19 relief 
monies funding plan.  Any remaining unallocated monies were allocated to fund a 
portion of our general operating expenditures as was done in the 2021-2022 year.  

Revenue 
The revised revenue projection is due to several factors.  First, increased revenues are 
anticipated due to higher-than-expected interest earnings.  This increased revenue is 
being partially offset by a reduction in revenue due to personnel changes that took place 
regarding our career specialists. Per our Joint Powers Agreement (JPA) with our 
partnering districts, Coastline is directly reimbursed for the costs associated with our 
career specialists.  In this case, we are projecting a lower amount of costs for these 
positions than was originally planned for in the board-approved 2022-2023 budget 
which is why the amount of revenue we project to receive for these positions is lower 

13.0



Coastline ROP 
2022-23 Second Interim Report 

than we originally planned for.  All other revenue sources have remained stable 
compared to what was budgeted in the board-approved budget for the 2022-2023 year. 

Expenditures 
The revised expenditures projection is due to several factors.  First, higher-than-
expected expenditures are anticipated in our books and supplies and capital outlay 
expenditure categories.  This increase in expenditures is being partially offset by 
anticipated savings in our services and other operating expenditures category.  This 
shift in expenditures is primarily related to our grant monies.  Higher-than-expected 
expenditures in one expenditure category typically means lower-than-expected 
expenditures in another expenditure category since our grant revenue must equal our 
grant expenditures.  Lastly, lower-than-expected expenditures are anticipated in our 
salaries and benefits expenditure category due to personnel changes.  This reduction in 
expenditures equates to an overall net savings that the ROP expects to generate for the 
2022-2023 year.   

Overall, the revised revenue projection needs to be increased by $24,047 from our 
board-approved budget for 2022-2023 year while the expenditure projection needs to be 
decreased by $23,416.  After these board resolutions are considered, the net increase 
in our surplus is $47,463.  The surplus amount in our board-approved budget for 2022-
2023 was $660,881 so this results in an overall surplus amount of $708,344 for 2022-
2023.    

A Budget Adjustment Resolution has been included for your approval which delineates 
which revenue/reserve and expenditure/reserve codes are to be adjusted in order to 
account for the increased revenue for 2022-2023.  In addition, a Budget Transfer 
Resolution has been included for your approval which delineates which 
expenditure/reserve codes are to be adjusted to account for the anticipated expenditure 
decrease for 2022-2023. 

Reserves 
On July 1, 2022, the beginning balance for the General Fund was $5,595,734. Following 
is the estimated ending General Fund balance as of June 30, 2023. 

Nonspendable 
Reserve for Revolving Cash  10,000 

Restricted 
CalWORKS for ROCP Adults  9,527 

Unassigned 
Undesignated/Unappropriated    5,906,341 
Reserve for Economic Uncertainties      250,000 

Assigned 
Newport-Mesa Lottery  68,112 
Tustin USD Lottery   60,098 

Total Reserves – Projected Ending General Fund Balance $6,304,078 

13.1



Coastline ROP 
2022-23 Second Interim Report 

The majority of ROP reserves are classified as an unrestricted resource, which do not 
have ending fund balance restrictions and/or limitations. Per the California Department 
of Education, CalWORKS funds generated by applicable ROP adults are restricted for 
use in the adult programs that generated the CalWORKS ADA. 

Multi-Year Projections 
The main premise that our multi-year projections are based on is the cost per section 
model per the JPA which went into effect as of July 1, 2020.  Each district has agreed to 
a minimum base number of sections for the 2022-2023 year and those base number of 
sections along with the cost per section which has also been agreed to and is part of the 
JPA, is how the amount of expected revenue was calculated for the 2023-2024 and 
2024-2025 years.  The assumption made for both the 2023-2024 and 2024-2025 years 
is that no change would be made to the base number of sections by any of our districts 
and we would receive a cost-of-living adjustment (COLA) of 8.13% in 2023-2024 and 
3.54% in 2024-2025 which would result in an increased cost per section in each of the 
next two years. Per the terms of the JPA, the cost per section will be assessed on a 
yearly basis in consultation with our partnering districts to determine the viability of that 
cost over the long term.  Any change to that cost per section excluding the increase for 
the COLA adjustment, would necessitate a revision to the revenue projections.   

The other major assumption that is being made is that Huntington Beach Union High 
School District will withdraw from the JPA at the end of the 2022-2023 year.  Huntington 
Beach Union notified us of their intent to withdraw from the JPA in September 2022 and 
that withdrawal would become effective as of July 1, 2023.  In order to be fiscally 
prudent, the assumption was made that the withdrawal would be finalized.  If Huntington 
Beach Union does not withdraw from the JPA, then the multi-year projections would 
need to be adjusted. 

In terms of other revenue streams, we assumed that no new grant funding would be 
secured in the 2023-2024 year, and beyond which is why revenue decreased 
significantly.  We have already been notified of approvals of the next round of funding 
for both the CTEIG and K12 SWP grants.  We anticipate receiving those funds later this 
spring.  As those funds are secured and received, they will be included in the multi-year 
projections. 

As previously noted, Coastline was the recipient of supplemental Covid-19 funds in the 
2021-2022 year.  This revenue was not included in the 2023-2024 year since the funds 
need to be expended by June of 2023 which is another factor contributing to the 
reduction in revenue over the next two years.  Our other revenue streams include tuition 
and fees, interest income, rebates, etc. Factors considered in calculating these revenue 
projections include historical data, expected inflation, exclusion of any one-time monies, 
etc.  

In terms of expenditures, those associated with one-time grant revenue were excluded 
from both the 2023-2024 and 2024-2025 years which is why expenditures decreased 
significantly.  In terms of any salary increases for our teachers and staff, none were 
included.  Our teachers and staff do not receive automatic salary increases each year.  
Those increases must be board-approved.   Any salary increases that are board-
approved in the future will be included in the multi-year projections.  Other factors 
considered in calculating these expenditure projections (books, supplies, equipment, 
etc.) include historical data, expected inflation, exclusion of any one-time monies, etc.  

13.2



Coastline ROP 
2022-23 Second Interim Report 

The ROP anticipates a deficit in the 2023-2024 year whereas a surplus is expected in 
the 2022-2023 year.  There are a few primary drivers behind this.  First, the ROP is 
utilizing the remaining Covid-19 monies during the 2022-2023 year which is a big factor 
behind why a surplus is anticipated, and those monies are no longer available in the 
2023-2024 year.  Another driver is the anticipated withdrawal of the Huntington Beach 
Union High School District which would become effective July 1, 2023.  With the 
withdrawal of a partner district comes the loss of the revenue that the ROP receives 
from that district.  We also reduce our expenditures since those classes will no longer 
be offered but the net loss to us after revenue lost and all expenditures are considered 
is significant.  If the withdrawal does not come to fruition, then the projected deficits for 
the next two years are eliminated altogether.  Another driver contributing to the deficit is 
the exclusion of new grant funding in the 2023-2024 year.  Typically, there is an indirect 
cost component to the grant funding we secure which allows us to utilize a percentage 
of the grant award received to offset our overall expenditures.  Lastly, all local 
educational agencies continue to face inflationary pressures as it relates to all aspects 
of delivering education to our students.  Rising pension rates, staffing, and health care 
costs are of particular concern.  These rising costs continue to put pressure on our 
budgets.  Our overall deficit in the 2024-2025 year does decrease compared to 2023-
2024 which assumes that we would receive a 3.54% COLA in 2024-2025 and that all 
other expenditures will remain relatively stable. 

Although we are projecting deficits in the following two years, Coastline will have a 
considerable amount of reserves available to absorb these deficits.  Coastline will work 
closely with the Board to identify ways to reduce these deficits while providing the best 
value possible to our partnering districts.  Spending these monies strategically while 
building out our programs and controlling costs as best as possible will put us in a 
position to eliminate the need to deficit spend while providing our districts with the level 
of service they expect at a reasonable cost. 

The Board of Trustees shall certify in writing whether or not the ROP is able to meet its 
financial obligations for the remainder of the fiscal year and, based on current forecasts, 
for two subsequent fiscal years. The certifications shall be classified as positive, 
qualified, or negative, pursuant to standards and criteria adopted by the State Board of 
Education (Education Code 33127). 

In submitting the 2022-23 Second Interim Report, the Board of Trustees understands its 
fiduciary responsibility to maintain fiscal solvency for the current and subsequent two 
fiscal years. As presented, Coastline ROP is projecting positive fund balances and cash 
flow for the current and two subsequent years. Furthermore, the ROP recognizes the 
need to maintain reserves above the five percent level currently required of a Local 
Education Agency (LEA) not funded on average daily attendance. If necessary, the 
ROP will consider subsequent year budget reductions in order to maintain positive 
certification. The ROP does not have bargaining units; therefore, budget reductions are 
not subject to negotiations.  

It is respectfully requested that the board approve the Second Interim Budget report 
with a positive certification that the ROP can meet its financial obligations for the current 
year and two subsequent years. 

Enclosures 

13.3



Coastline ROP 
2022-23 Second Interim Report 

Revenue Detail Explanation Sheet 
8000 

Federal Revenues 
8290 Other federal revenues are not included at this time. 

State Revenues 
8590 Other state revenues are included for the CTE Incentive 

grant, CalWORKS for ROCP, Supplemental Covid-19 
funding, and STRS on-behalf revenue. 

Local Revenues 
8631 Sale of obsolete equipment when it is available. 

8660 Interest, 1.00% net yield on funds in county treasury 
educational pool. 

8699 Other income from local grant funds, printing projects, 
facilities use, donations, requests for records, refunds, etc. 

8710 Adult registration fees (includes fee-based courses). 

8781 ROP cost per section fee from participating districts and 
reimbursement of Career Specialist costs. 

13.4



Coastline ROP 
2022-23 Second Interim Report 

Expenditure Detail Explanation Sheet 
1000-7000 

Certificated Salaries 

1100 Teachers. 

1200 Pupil Support/Counselor – currently there are no positions in  
this category. 

1300 Director, Educational Services; and Administrators, 
Educational Services. 

1900 K12 Pathway Coordinator, Instructional Support and Media 
Specialist, and Mentor Teachers. 

Classified Salaries 

2100 Instructional Assistants and Job Coaches. 

2200 Career Specialists, Network Specialist, and Facility 
Maintenance Technician. 

2300 Superintendent, Director of Business Services, Manager of 
Technology Services, Administrator Human Resources, and 
Board Members. 

2400 Support staff/Clerical personnel. 

2900 Other classified salaries. 

Employee Benefits 

3100 STRS – Rate 19.10% 

3200  PERS – Rate 25.37% 

3300 Medicare – Rate 1.45%; OASDI (non-STRS/PERS) – Rate 
6.2% 

3400 Health and Welfare – medical, dental, vision and life 
insurance benefits. 

13.5



Coastline ROP 
2022-23 Second Interim Report 

Expenditure Detail Explanation Sheet 
1000 – 7000 

3500 Unemployment Insurance – 0.50% 

3600 Workers Compensation – Rate 1.9181% 

3700 Retiree Benefits 

Books, Supplies, Non-capitalized Equipment 

4100 Textbooks 

4200 Other Books 

4300 Materials and Supplies 

4400 Non-capitalized Equipment 

Services, Other Operating Expenses 

5200 Mileage, Conference and Travel. 

5300 Dues and Memberships – including CAROCP, CASBO, 
CSBA, and WASC. 

5400 Property and Liability Insurance – including special coverage 
for health program students. 

5500 Utilities and Housekeeping. 

5600 Rentals/Leases/Repairs – major expense in this item is the 
Presidio facility lease. 

5700 Direct cost transfers. 

13.6



Coastline ROP 
2022-23 Second Interim Report 

Expenditure Detail Explanation Sheet 
1000 – 7000 

5800 Professional Services, Other Services, and Operational 
Expenses –e.g. Presidio site facility maintenance, human 
resources and financial systems support, legal services, 
auditing services, advertising, and other miscellaneous 
expenses. 

5900 Communications – phone, Internet connection, postage. 

Capital Outlay 

6200 Buildings and Improvement of Buildings – includes leasehold 
improvements. 

6400 Equipment – instructional and non-instructional purposes. 

6500 Replacement of Equipment – instructional and non-
instructional purposes. 

Other Outgo 

7210 Indirect cost transfers. 

7213 Pass through of grant funds. 

7430 Debt service. 

7612 Transfers out. 

13.7



Coastline ROP 
2022-23 Second Interim Report 

Multi-year Projections:  2023-2024 Budget Assumptions 

Revenue 

• Cost per Section Revenue from Districts – based on base level of sections for each
district included in the 2022-2023 year.  Those sections are multiplied by the
approved cost per section.  Cost per section was increased by the cost-of-living-
adjustment (COLA) of 8.13%.  The assumption was made that Huntington Beach
Union School district would withdraw from the JPA effective July 1, 2023.  Actual
costs for career specialists are estimated and included as reimbursable expenses
back to each respective district.

• CTE Incentive Grant is included; funding expires December 31, 2023.  Approval has
already been given for the next round of funding and we expect to receive those
funds later this spring.  Those funds will need to be spent by December 31, 2024.

• K12 Strong Workforce Program Grant Round 3 is excluded and Round 4 is included;
funding expires June 30, 2024.  Approval has already been given for the next round
of funding and we expect to receive those funds later this spring.  Those funds will
be to be spent by June 30, 2025.

• K12 Strong Workforce Program Pathway Coordinator Ground Round 4 is included;
funding expires September 30, 2023.

• Other Local Income – based on historical data less one-time monies.
• Interest Income – based on 1.00 percent yield.

Expenditures 

• Salaries – based on estimated 2022-2023 salaries with adjustments due to
personnel changes, the removal of one-time costs, grants and [non fee-based]
summer school salaries, etc. The ROP uses a performance-based compensation
system; it does not have a bargaining unit or automatic step and column increases
for salaries.  Adjustments were made to permanently increase eligible salaries by
3% per the board action approved in October 2022.

• Statutory Benefits – based on the following rates: CalSTRS 19.10%, CalPERS
27.00%, OASDI 6.2%, Medicare 1.45%, SUI (state unemployment insurance)
0.50%, and workers compensation 1.9181%.

• Health Benefits – based on 2022-2023 costs with consideration of expected increase
of 5%.

• Textbooks – based on similar expenditures as 2022-2023, less one-time
expenditures; includes one-time expenses associated with one-time grants.
Adjustment for inflation of 5% was included.

• Supplies – based on similar expenditures as 2022-23, less one-time expenditures,
includes one-time expenditures associated with one-time grants.  Adjustment for
inflation of 5% was included.

• Non-Capitalized Equipment – based on similar expenditures as 2022-2023, less
one-time expenditures, includes one-time expenditures associated with one-time
grant funds.  Adjustment for inflation of 5% was included.

13.8



Coastline ROP 
2022-23 Second Interim Report 

• Professional Services & Other Operating Costs – based on similar expenditures as
2022-2023, less one-time expenditures, includes one-time grant expenditures
associated with one-time grant funds.  Adjustment for inflation of 5% was included.

• Capital Outlay – the ROP’s capital threshold is $5,000. Due to the nature of ROP
expenditures, we foresee only a minimal amount of purchases in excess of the
capital threshold. Prior year capital equipment was funded with grants.

Multi-year Projections:  2024-2025 Budget Assumptions 

Revenue 
• Cost per Section Revenue from Districts – based on base level of sections for each

district included in the 2022-2023 year.  Those sections are multiplied by the
approved cost per section.  Cost per section was increased by the cost-of-living-
adjustment (COLA) of 3.54%.  The assumption was made that Huntington Beach
Union School district would withdraw from the JPA effective July 1, 2023. Actual
costs for career specialists are estimated and included as reimbursable expenses
back to each respective district.

• CTE Incentive Grant and all K12 Strong Workforce Program grants are excluded.
Efforts to secure future grant funding in 2024-2025 are ongoing.

• Other Local Income – based on historical data less one-time monies.

• Interest Income – based on 1.00 percent yield.

Expenditures 

• Salaries – based on estimated 2023-2024 salaries with adjustments due to
personnel changes, the removal of one-time costs, grants and [non fee-based]
summer school salaries, etc. The ROP uses a performance-based compensation
system; it does not have a bargaining unit or automatic step and column increases
for salaries.  Adjustments were made to permanently increase eligible salaries by
3% per the board action approved in October 2022.

• Statutory Benefits – based on the following rates: CalSTRS 19.10%, CalPERS
28.10%, OASDI 6.2%, Medicare 1.45%, SUI (state unemployment insurance)
0.50%, and workers compensation 1.9181%.

• Health Benefits – based on 2023-2024 costs with consideration of expected increase
of 5%.

• Textbooks – based on similar expenditures as 2023-2024, less one-time
expenditures, including those associated with one-time grants.  Adjustment for
inflation of 5% was included.

• Supplies – based on similar expenditures as 2023-24, less one-time expenditures,
including those associated with one-time grants.  Adjustment for inflation of 5% was
included.

• Non-Capitalized Equipment – based on similar expenditures as 2023-2024, less
one-time expenditures, including those associated with one-time grants.  Adjustment
for inflation of 5% was included.

13.9



Coastline ROP 
2022-23 Second Interim Report 

• Professional Services & Other Operating Costs – based on similar expenditures as
2023-2024, less one-time expenditures, including those associated with one-time
grant funds.  Adjustment for inflation of 5% was included.

• Capital Outlay – the ROP’s capital threshold is $5,000. Due to the nature of ROP
expenditures, we foresee only a minimal amount of purchases in excess of the
capital threshold. Prior year capital equipment was funded with grants.

13.10



13.11



13.12



13.13



13.14



13.15



13.16



13.17



13.18



13.19



13.20



13.21



13.22



13.23



13.24



13.25



13.26



13.27



13.28



13.29



13.30



13.31



13.32



13.33



13.34



13.35



13.36



13.37



13.38



13.39



13.40



13.41



13.42



13.43



13.44



13.45



13.46



13.47



13.48



13.49



13.50



13.51



13.52



13.53



13.54



13.55



13.56



Participating School Districts:      Huntington Beach Union / Irvine / Newport-Mesa / Saddleback Valley / Tustin Unified 

Board of Trustees:    Bonnie Castrey / Lauren Brooks / Michelle Barto / Suzie Swartz / Lynn Davis 

1001 Presidio Square, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 · (714) 979-1955 · www.coastlinerop.net     Brian K. Dozer, D.Mgt. Superintendent 

TO: Board of Trustees 

FROM: Brian Dozer  

DATE:  March 3, 2023  

SUBJECT: K12 SWP Round 5 Sub-Agreement 

Coastline ROP serves as the lead agency for three of our districts in our JPA for the 
K12 Strong Workforce Program Round 5. The consortium was awarded $715,820 for a 
performance period of January 1, 2023, through June 30, 2025. The funding is for the 
project titled: Business and ICT: An Industry Need, An Expedient Option for Students. 
It is respectfully requested that the Board of Trustees approve the sub-agreement with 
the Rancho Santiago Community College District for Round 5 K12 Strong Workforce 
Program grant funds. 

14.0



Sub-Agreement between RSCCD and Coastline ROP 

GRANT SUB-AGREEMENT BETWEEN 

RANCHO SANTIAGO COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT 

AND 

COASTLINE ROP 

This grant sub-agreement (hereinafter "Agreement") is entered into on this 13th of February, 2023, 
between Rancho Santiago Community College District (hereinafter "RSCCD") and Coastline

ROP (hereinafter "SUBCONTRACTOR"). RSCCD and SUBCONTRACTOR may be referred to 
individually as a "Party" and collectively as the "Parties" in this Agreement. 

WHEREAS, RSCCD was selected to serve as the Fiscal Agent for the K12 Strong Workforce 
Program for Orange County, (hereinafter "Grant") from the California Community Colleges 
Chancellor's Office, Workforce and Economic Development Division (hereinafter "Prime 
Sponsor"), to sub-grant and contract with Local Educational Agencies to implement career 
education, K-12 to community college pathway improvement projects that connect to in-demand, 
high-wage occupations in the region; and 

WHEREAS, RSCCD has the right to enter into agreements with outside entities for various 
services with the approval of the Board of Trustees; and 

WHEREAS, SUBCONTRACTOR has agreed to participate in the purpose of the Grant according 
to the terms and conditions hereinafter set forth. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Parties hereby agree as follows: 

ARTICLE I 

1. Statement of Work
SUBCONTRACTOR agrees to perform the work in the Scope of Work (Exhibit A) approved
by the PRIME SPONSOR, which by reference is incorporated into this Agreement.
SUBCONTRACTOR agrees to comply with all provisions, to perform all work as set forth in
this Agreement and the aforementioned Statement of Work in a professional, timely and
diligent manner.

2. Period of Performance
The period of performance for this Agreement shall be from January 1, 2023 through June 30,
2025.

3. Total Cost
The total cost to RSCCD for performance of this Agreement shall not exceed $715,820 USD.

4. Budget
SUBCONTRACTOR agrees that expenditure of funds under this Agreement will be in
accordance with the Scope of Work (Exhibit A) submitted by the SUBCONTRACTOR and
approved by the PRIME SPONSOR and/or RSCCD, as appropriate, which by reference is
incorporated into this Agreement. Modifications to the budget are allowed without prior

Agreement No. DO-22-2449-06 2022/23 K12 Strong Workforce Program 
Page 1 of7 

14.1



Sub-Agreement between RSCCD and Coastline ROP 

approval, as long as the total dollar amount is not affected and the outcomes of the Agreement 
will not be materially affected. 

5. Payment and Invoicing
Payment to the SUBCONTRACTOR shall be based on an advance payment of 70% (seventy
percent) after the Agreement is fully executed, up to 20% (twenty percent) in progress payment
upon submission of an invoice and accompanying documentation as required by the Regional
Consortium and completion of all reports due at the time the invoice is submitted. The final
10% (ten percent) payment is contingent upon successful performance of the work, as
approved by the PRIME SPONSOR. Payment shall not exceed the amount listed above under
Article 1.3. "Total Costs".

SUBCONTRACTOR must electronically submit invoices for payment to the RSCCD Fiscal 
Agent Office in-box at FA Kl2Kl4@rsccd.edu. The e-mail subject line of the invoice should 
be as follows: "Invoice Enclosed- LEA Acronym/SWP Kl2 PIF/Sub-Agreement #". 

Refer to the Invoice Form and Instructions (Exhibit B) for guidance on how to complete and 
submit invoices. (NOTE: an electronic version of the invoice form will be provided to the 
SUBCONTRACTOR). 

6. Reporting
SUBCONTRACTOR will provide reports as requested or required by the PRIME SPONSOR,
in a timely manner. The PRIME SPONSOR and/or RSCCD will provide guidance and
instructions on reporting to the SUBCONTRACTOR.

K12 Strong Workforce Program funding is project based with project submissions and 
reporting expenditures in NOV A. The SUBCONTRACTOR agrees to adhere to the reporting 
frequency as identified in Exhibit D: K12 Strong Workforce Program RFA-Appendix A: 
Grantee Requirements and Guidelines, p.31-32. Periodic fiscal and narrative progress reports 
of project progress may be requested by Rancho Santiago Community College District at any 
time. 

SUBCONTRACTOR shall prepare and submit outcomes data as required by the legislation, 
Education Code §88828 (d)(8), and as referenced in Exhibit D: K12 Strong Workforce 
Program RF A -Appendix A: Grantee Requirements and Guidelines, p. 31. As per the 
legislation, failure to provide this data may result in termination of the grant. 

7. Expenditure of Grant Funds
SUBCONTRACTOR agrees to comply with all Grant requirements and that it is solely
responsible for the appropriate expenditure of all Grant funds received and for any
misappropriation or dis-allowment of Grant funds.

8. Modifications
SUBCONTRACTOR may make changes to any budget categories up to 10% (ten percent) of
the total award amount per line item without the approval of RSCCD so long as budget
categories are not added or deleted, the total dollar amount of the Agreement is not affected,

Agreement No. DO-22-2449-06 2022/23 Kl2 Strong Workforce Program 
Page 2 of7 

14.2



Sub-Agreement between RSCCD and Coastline ROP 

and the outcomes of the Agreement will not be materially affected. SUBCONTRACTOR may 
add or delete budget categories subject to the prior approval ofRSCCD. 

If the SUBCONTRACTOR wishes to make substantial changes to the scope of work, then a 
revised scope of work that describes the requested changes and their impact to the budget and 
outcomes must be submitted to RSCCD and approved by the PRIME SPONSOR. Substantial 
changes are those that would represent a significant deviation from the approved scope of work 
and would lead to different outcomes or fall outside of the generally understood purpose of the 
use of the funds. Changes in methods of implementation (i.e., the means by which the approved 
scope of work is implemented) or movement between budget line items would not be 
considered substantial changes, and would not require prior approval. 

9. Time Extensions
SUBCONTRACTOR must spend all of the funds allocated through this Agreement within the
timeframe of the Agreement.

10. Independent Contractor
SUBCONTRACTOR agrees that the service provided hereunder are rendered in its capacity
as an independent contractor and that it is not in any way an agent of RSCCD, nor shall its
employees be entitled to any personnel benefits of RSCCD whatsoever.

11. Subcontract Assignment
Unless specifically noted in the Scope of Work (Exhibit A), none of the duties of, or work to
be performed by, SUBCONTRACTOR under this Agreement shall be sub-contracted or
assigned to any agency, consultant, or person without the prior written approval by the PRIME
SPONSOR. No subcontract or assignment shall terminate or alter the legal obligation of
SUBCONTRACTOR pursuant to this Agreement. SUBCONTRACTOR shall ensure that all
subcontracts for services and contracted staff are procured in a manner consistent with state
guidelines. Upon request, SUBCONTRACTOR shall submit to RSCCD copies of all sub
contracts for services and contracted staff, and other agreements, as well as documentation
indicating the approving authority's approval that relate to this Agreement.

12. Record Keeping
SUBCONTRACTOR agrees to maintain project records for possible audit for a minimum of
three (3) years after final payment or until any audit findings have been resolved, unless a
longer period of records retention is stipulated.

13. Audit
SUBCONTRACTOR agrees that RSCCD, the PRIME SPONSOR, the Bureau of State Audits,
any other appropriate state or federal oversight agency, or their designated representative(s),
shall have the right to review and to copy any records and supporting documentation pertaining
to the performance of this Agreement. SUBCONTRACTOR agrees to allow the auditor(s)
access to such records during normal business hours and to allow interviews of any employees
who might reasonably have information related to such records. Further, SUBCONTRACTOR
agrees to include a similar right ofRSCCD, the PRIME SPONSOR, the Bureau of State Audits,
any other appropriate state or federal oversight agency, or their designated representative(s) to

Agreement No. DO-22-2449-06 2022/23 K12 Strong Workforce Program 
Page 3 of7 

14.3



Sub-Agreement between RSCCD and Coastline ROP 

audit records and interview staff in any subcontract related to the performance of this 
Agreement. 

14. Mutual Indemnification
Both Parties to this Agreement shall agree to defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the other
Party, its officers, agents, employees, and volunteers, from and against all loss, cost, and
expense arising out of any liability or claim of liability, sustained or claimed to have been
sustained, arising out of activities, or the performance or nonperformance of obligations under
this Agreement, of the indemnifying Party, or those of any of its officers, agents, employees,
or volunteers. The provisions of this Article do not apply to any damage or losses caused by
the sole negligence or the willful misconduct of the non-indemnifying party or any of its agents
or employees.

15. Termination
Either Party may terminate this Agreement, with or without cause upon thirty (30) days written
notice served upon the other Party. Notice shall be deemed served on the date of mailing.
Upon termination, or notice thereof, the Parties agree to cooperate with one another in the

orderly transfer of contract responsibilities, records, and pertinent documents.

The obligations of RSCCD under this Agreement are contingent upon the availability of State 
funds, as applicable, for the reimbursement of SUBCONTRACTOR expenditures, and 
inclusion of sufficient funds for the services hereunder in the budget approved by the RSCCD 
Board of Trustees each fiscal year this Agreement remains in effect. In the event that such 
funding is terminated or reduced, RSCCD shall provide SUBCONTRACTOR with written 
notification of such determination, and RSCCD will reimburse SUBCONTRACTOR for costs 
incurred up to the termination date. 

16. Disputes
In the event of a dispute between the Parties, the aggrieved Party shall notify the other Party
and provide a detailed description of the alleged problem. The Parties agree to use reasonable
efforts to resolve such dispute by good faith negotiations and mutual agreement. In the event
such informal resolution is not successful within a reasonable period of time, the Parties hereby
agree that such dispute will be resolved in the manner specified below.

Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, any dispute concerning any question arising 
under this Agreement shall be decided by RSCCD and/or the PRIME SPONSOR. In such a 
case, the decision shall be reduced to writing and a copy thereof shall be mailed or otherwise 
furnished to SUBCONTRACTOR. The decision shall be final and conclusive unless within 
thirty (30) calendar days from the mailing or delivery of such copy, RSCCD receives from 
SUBCONTRACTOR a written request to appeal said decision. Pending final decision of the 
appeal, SUBCONTRACTOR shall act in accordance with the written decision of RSCCD or 
the PRIME SPONSOR, whichever is the final arbiter of the dispute. The handling of non
criminal complaints, including discrimination complaints, and complaints and reports of 
criminal fraud, waste and abuse shall be as prescribed by the State of California, and/or the 
PRIME SPONSOR, whichever is applicable, in accordance with applicable provisions of the 
Code of Federal Regulations. 

Agreement No. DO-22-2449-06 2022/23 K12 Strong Workforce Program 
Page4 of7 

14.4



Sub-Agreement between RSCCD and Coastline ROP 

17. Notices
All notices, reports and correspondence between the Parties hereto respecting this Agreement
shall be via email or deposited in the United States Mail addressed as follows:

RSCCD: Primary Contact: 

Rancho Santiago Community College District 
Sarah Santoyo, Assistant Vice Chancellor, Educational Services 
2323 N. Broadway, Suite 201 

Santa Ana, CA 92706 
(714) 480-7466; Santoyo_Sarah@rsccd.edu

Fiscal Representative: 
Rancho Santiago Community College District 
Iris I. Ingram, Vice Chancellor, Business Services 

2323 North Broadway, Ste. 404-1 
Santa Ana, CA 92706 
(714) 480-7340, Ingram_Iris@rsccd.edu

SUBCONTRACTOR: 
Primary Contad: 

Name: 

Title: 

Address: 

Phone: 

Email: 

Fiscal Representative: 

Name: 

Title: 

Address: 

Phone: 

Email: 

18. Total Agreement
This Agreement, together with the attachments hereto, expresses the total understanding of
both Parties. There are no oral understandings of the Parties or terms and conditions other than
as are stated herein. SUBCONTRACTOR acknowledges that it has read and agrees to all terms
and conditions included in this Agreement.

Agreement No. DO-22-2449-06 2022/23 Kl2 Strong Workforce Program 
Page 5 of7 

Brian K. Dozer
Superintendent
1001 Presidio Square
Costa Mesa, CA 92626
714-429-2222
bdozer@coastlinerop.net

Sesar Morfin
Director of Business Services
1001 Presidio Square
Costa Mesa, CA 92626
714-429-2220
smorfin@coastlinerop.net

14.5



Sub-Agreement between RSCCD and Coastline ROP 

19. Amendments

This Agreement may be modified or revised at any time by the Parties as long as the
amendment is made in writing and signed by an authorized official of both Parties.

ARTICLE II 

1. Legal Terms and Conditions

This Agreement will be implemented in accordance with the conditions defined in the Grant

Agreement, RF A Specifications and the Grant Agreement Legal Terms and Conditions
(Education Code Title 3, Division 7, Part 54.5 Strong Workforce Program Section 88827-

88833) as set forth and incorporated into this Agreement by reference. As the Grant is subject
to any additional restrictions, limitations, or conditions enacted in the State Budget and/or
Executive Orders that may affect the provisions, terms, or funding of this Agreement in any
manner, RSCCD may modify this Agreement through an amendment, as needed.
SUBCONTRACTOR agrees to expend all funds in accordance with all applicable federal, state
and local laws and regulations.

2. Assurances
By signing this Agreement the Parties certify that they comply with the legal requirements
regarding Standards of Conduct, Workers' Compensation Insurance, Participation in Grant
Funded Activities, the Nondiscrimination Clause, Accessibility for Persons with Disabilities,
and Drug-Free Workplace Certification.

This Agreement represents the entire understanding between RSCCD and SUBCONTRACTOR 
with respect to the Grant. No change, modification, extension, termination or waiver of this 
Agreement, or any of the provisions herein contained, shall be valid unless made in writing and 

signed by duly authorized representatives of the Parties hereto. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto certify that they have read and understand all the 
terms and conditions contained herein and have caused this Agreement to be executed as of the 
day that both Parties have signed the Agreement. 

RANCHO SANTIAGO COMMUNITY 
COLLEGE DISTRICT 

By: 

Name: 

Title: 

Date: 

Iris Ingram {Fe4, 2023 17:44 PST) 

Iris I. Ingram 

Vice Chancellor 

Business Services 

Feb 14, 2023 

Board Approval Date: February 13, 2023 

Agreement No. DO-22-2449-06 

SUBCONTRACTOR: Coastline ROP

By: 

Name: 

Title: 

Date: 

Employer/faxpayer Identification Number (EIN) 

2022/23 Kl2 Strong Workforce Program 
Page 6 of7 

Brian K. Dozer

Superintendent

March 9, 2023

95-2887481

14.6



Participating School Districts:      Huntington Beach Union / Irvine / Newport-Mesa / Saddleback Valley / Tustin Unified 

Board of Trustees:    Bonnie Castrey / Lauren Brooks / Michelle Barto / Suzie Swartz / Lynn Davis 

1001 Presidio Square, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 · (714) 979-1955 · www.coastlinerop.net     Brian K. Dozer, D.Mgt. Superintendent 

TO: Board of Trustees 

FROM: Brian Dozer 

DATE:  March 2, 2023 

SUBJECT: Modification to Employment Contract – Sesar Morfin 

We are proposing to change Sesar Morfin’s title from Director, Business Services to 
Chief Business Official. Sesar’s duties would now include managing Technology 
Services (which includes 4 employees working on IT, Facilities, Shipping, and Student 
Data) and moving reporting responsibility from the Superintendent to Business 
Services. This change in status for Sesar would also include a change in compensation. 
The proposed changes would take effect on April 1, 2023. 

It is respectfully requested the board approve the revised contract with the new title and 
compensation for this position.  

15.0



C H I E F  B U S I N E S S  O F F I C I A L   1 

Coastline Regional Occupational Program 
  Job Description 

CHIEF BUSINESS OFFICIAL 

Location: Business Services 
Reports To: Superintendent 
Supervises: Accounting/Payroll Specialist, Accounting/Budgeting Specialist, Accounts 

Payable Specialist/Purchasing Specialist, Network Specialist, , Student 
Information Specialist, Facility Maintenance/Receiving & Delivery Worker 
and Manager, Technology Services.  

Pay Classification: Contractual Agreement 
Revision Date: February 2, 2023 

GENERAL DESCRIPTION 

 Plan, organize, control and direct accounting, and technology operations and activities; prepare, 
develop, monitor, review, process, analyze, maintain and adjust budgets, funds and accounts; review, 
analyze, prepare and develop the annual budget; direct and participate in financial record-keeping, 
reporting and auditing functions to ensure accurate and timely accounting and reporting of funds and 
budgets; oversee the services, operations and activities of Coastline ROP’s Facilities, and Technology 
Services; supervise and evaluate the performance of assigned personnel. 

Duties and Responsibilities 
• Plan, organize, control and direct accounting operations and activities including the preparation,

development, monitoring, review, processing, analysis, maintenance and adjustment of
Coastline ROP budgets, funds and accounts; establish and maintain fiscal timelines and
priorities; ensure financial activities comply with established guidelines, requirements, auditing
standards, laws, codes, regulations, policies and procedures.

• Monitor and participate in the development, preparation, review and analysis of the budget and
various departmental and program budgets to ensure proper allocations, fund disbursement,
fiscal solvency and compliance with legal requirements; evaluate, forecast, calculate and project
annual revenue, expenditures and balances to determine budget requirements.

• Supervise and evaluate the performance of assigned personnel; interview and select employees
and recommend transfers, reassignment, termination and disciplinary actions; coordinate
departmental work assignments and review work to ensure accuracy, completeness and
compliance with established standards, requirements and procedures.

• Oversee and direct internal business functions including payroll, accounts payable, accounts
receivable, purchasing, budget analyst, employee benefits, accounting, developer fees,
attendance accounting, employee leave tracking, employee reimbursements and other business
functions as directed.

15.1



C H I E F  B U S I N E S S  O F F I C I A L   2 

• Oversee the services and activities of ROP’s Technology Services; ensure technology services
functions comply with applicable safety regulations and established laws, rules, policies and
procedures.

• Oversee Facilities operations and activities; provide leadership for various projects including
facilities master planning, RFQ/RFP preparation for contractors, lease/leaseback partners,
architects, construction managers, financial advisors, facility use fees, facility work planning, CSR
analysis, implementation of new regulations and Uniform Cost accounting procedures; prepare
cost analysis of a variety of proposals.

• Collaborate with administrators, staff and community members to develop a spending plan to
meet the priorities established by the community and the Board.

• Direct and participate in the preparation and maintenance of various financial and statistical
records, statements, and reports related to budgets, accounts, funds, income, expenditures and
assigned duties; prepare interim, final, administrative, year-end and other governmental fiscal
and budgetary reports; ensure mandated reports are submitted to appropriate local, State and
Federal agencies per established timelines and requirements.

• Schedule and conduct financial audits to ensure compliance with established fiscal standards
and requirements; ensure compliance with Education Codes, grant requirements, and
categorical program requirements.

• Coordinate, assist, and provide fiscal information to outside auditors as directed; prepare and
distribute financial data to auditors as needed; coordinate the annual audit; implement new
initiatives to reduce cost, improve efficiency or provide additional benefits to employee and
students.

• Coordinate and direct risk management and safety activities to protect assets and minimize loss
expenses; monitor and evaluate programs, physical conditions, and trends in claims to identify
exposures to risk.

• Provide consultation and technical expertise to administrators and personnel regarding fiscal
and other business services operations and activities as needed; respond to inquiries and
provide detailed and technical information concerning related accounts, funds, budgets, income,
expenditures, records, reports, standards, requirements, projections, laws, codes, regulations,
policies, and procedures.

• Provide technical information and assistance to the Superintendent concerning Business
Services’ operations and accounting and budgetary functions, needs and issues; assist in the
formulation and development of fiscal policies, procedures and programs.

• Operate a variety of office equipment including a computer and assigned software; drive a
vehicle to conduct work.

• Attend, coordinate and conduct various meetings as assigned including Board budget
subcommittee and facility meetings; prepare and present Board presentations related to ROP’s
business operations, finances, contracts with outside agencies, facilities, policies, State budget
information and related matters.

QUALIFICATION GUIDELINES 

Knowledge of:  
• Planning, organization and direction of accounting operations and activities including the

preparation, development, monitoring, review, processing, analysis, maintenance and
adjustment of budgets, funds, and accounts.

15.2



C H I E F  B U S I N E S S  O F F I C I A L   3 

• Accounting, auditing, budget, and business functions of an educational organization.
• Advanced theory and application of budgetary planning and control in a school system.
• Generally accepted accounting and auditing principles, practices and procedures.
• Preparation, analysis, review and control of Coastline ROP accounts and budgets.
• Policies, laws, rules and regulations related to internal business services, nutrition services,

facilities and transportation.
• Financial and statistical record-keeping techniques.
• Financial analysis and projection techniques.
• Preparation of financial statements and comprehensive accounting reports.
• Planning, organization and direction of risk management and safety programs, operations and

activities.
• Risk management and loss control principles and techniques.
• Principles and practices of administration, supervision and training.
• Operation of a variety of office equipment including a computer and assigned software.
• Oral and written communication skills.
• Interpersonal skills using tact, patience and courtesy.

Ability to: 
• Plan, organize, control and direct Coastline ROP accounting operations and activities including

the preparation, development, monitoring, review, processing, analysis, maintenance and
adjustment of budgets, funds and accounts.

• Review, analyze, prepare and develop the annual Coastline ROP, school site and departmental
budgets.

• Direct and participate in financial record-keeping, reporting and auditing functions to ensure
accurate and timely accounting and reporting of funds and budgets.

• Oversee the activities and operations of the Technology Services, and Facilities functions.
• Supervise and evaluate the performance of assigned personnel.
• Direct activities to ensure proper and timely resolution of fiscal issues, errors and discrepancies.
• Provide technical training, assistance and expertise concerning accounting and budget functions.
• Evaluate financial data and prepare reports, forecasts and recommendations.
• Review and analyze budgets to ensure proper allocations, fund disbursement and fiscal solvency.
• Interpret, apply and explain laws, codes, regulations, policies and procedures.
• Communicate effectively both orally and in writing.
• Establish and maintain cooperative and effective working relationships with others.
• Operate a computer and assigned office equipment.
• Analyze situations accurately and adopt an effective course of action.
• Meet schedules and timelines.
• Work independently with little direction.
• Plan and organize work.
• Direct the preparation and maintenance of various financial and statistical records and

comprehensive accounting reports.

Education and Experience: 

15.3



C H I E F  B U S I N E S S  O F F I C I A L   4 

Required:  Bachelor’s degree from an accredited college or university in accounting, business 
administration, management or a closely related field. 

Experience:  Six years of administrative accounting experience involving the review, analysis, 
maintenance and adjustment of various budgets, funds and accounts for public entities; five years of 
school experience preferred in a responsible position with supervisory duties in business management 
or a closely related field.  

Other Requirements: 
 Licenses:  Valid California Class C Driver’s License.  

PHYSICAL ELEMENTS AND WORKING CONDITIONS  
The work environment characteristics described here are representative of those an employee 
encounters while performing the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations may be 
made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform essential functions.  

• Dexterity of hands and fingers to operate a computer keyboard.
• Seeing to read a variety of materials.
• Sitting for extended periods of time.
• Hearing and speaking to exchange information and make presentations.
• Occasionally required to lift, push and pull moderately heavy objects as assigned by the position.

WORKING CONDITIONS: 
• Office environment.
• Driving a vehicle to conduct work.
• Constant interruptions.

15.4



1001 Presidio Square, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 · (714) 979-1955 · www.coastlinerop.net     Brian K. Dozer, D.Mgt. Superintendent 

TO: Board of Trustees 

FROM: Brian Dozer 

DATE:  February 28, 2023 

SUBJECT: Approval – Accounts Payable Clerk Position 

Background.  Over the past several years, the responsibilities associated with the 
procurement of supplies and equipment for our various school sites and the processing 
of payments to vendors for those supplies and equipment have all been shouldered by 
our Accounts Payable/Purchasing Specialist. The workload for this position has 
increased significantly over the past couple of years, particularly over the past several 
months, given the substantial amount of grant funding we have secured. The California 
Department of Education has already notified us that we will receive the largest Career 
Technical Education Incentive Grant that we have ever received later this spring. We 
have also been notified that we will be receiving the next round of the Strong Workforce 
Program Grant. The amount of the new grant is slightly less than what we received in 
the previous round of the grant.  Although this is welcome news, the significant amount 
of grant monies will undoubtedly increase the workload for the Accounts 
Payable/Purchasing Specialist. 

When the workload increases for this position, it delays procuring supplies and 
equipment for our classrooms. It also delays processing payments to our vendors, 
which can lead to unfavorable payment terms and additional costs to us as an 
organization. To minimize these delays and to minimize the impact that these delays 
have on our students and staff, we believe it is necessary to create an Accounts 
Payable Clerk position that will support the accounts payable function of the Accounts 
Payable/Purchasing Specialist. The Accounts Payable Clerk position will allow the 
Accounts Payable/Purchasing Specialist to dedicate more time to the purchasing 
function of their position.   

Financial Implication.  The need for this position is primarily the result of the significant 
amount of grant money we have and expect to continue to receive. There is an indirect 
cost component to the larger grants we receive. This indirect cost component is 
intended to cover our costs to manage each respective grant. The indirect costs we 
expect to receive from our current and future grants will more than cover the cost of the 
Accounts Payable Clerk position. Currently, SWP grants provide 4% for indirect, and 
CTEIG 8 provides 16.81%. Should the level of grant funding we receive in the future 
significantly decrease, then the need for this position shall be reassessed at that time. 

16.0



1001 Presidio Square, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 · (714) 979-1955 · www.coastlinerop.net     Brian K. Dozer, D.Mgt. Superintendent 

The Accounts Payable Clerk position would be part-time, not to exceed 30 hours per 
week. The estimated annual cost is approximately $39,031, exclusive of benefits. 

Recommendation.  It is respectfully requested that the Board of Trustees approve the 
new Accounts Payable Clerk position and the enclosed job description.    

16.1



ACCOUNTS PAYABLE CLERK        1 

Coastline Regional Occupational Program 
Job Description  

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE CLERK 

Location: Business Services 
Reports To: Director, Business Services 
Supervises: N/A 
Pay Classification: Classified Salary Schedule (Range 118) 
Approval Date: 

GENERAL DESCRIPTION 

Perform routine and specialized accounts payable duties; maintain financial and vendor records; perform 
a variety of clerical duties in support of Coastline ROP’s business services department. 

Duties and Responsibilities 
• Perform a variety of clerical accounting and record-keeping duties in support of accounts

payable; process and verify related financial forms and documents.
• Receive, sort and file purchase orders; check invoices and match with purchase orders and

receivers; prepare and code invoices for payments.
• Input invoice and other financial data into an assigned computer system; maintain automated

financial records and files; review input and output data for accuracy and completeness;
generate a variety of computerized lists and reports as assigned.

• Maintain various auditable records related to expenditures, invoices and assigned accounts;
prepare routine reports as required; establish and maintain filing systems.

• Operate a variety of office equipment including a copier, fax machine, computer and assigned 
software.

• Communicate with personnel and various outside agencies to exchange information and
resolve issues or concerns.

• Receive requests for repairs of copiers and related equipment.
• Answer telephones, take messages and provide information related to accounts payable

activities, procedures and other information as requested, direct calls to appropriate
personnel.

QUALIFICATION GUIDELINES 

Knowledge of:  
• Basic inventory methods, accounting practices, procedures and techniques of accounts

payables and accrual procedures.
• Financial and statistical record-keeping techniques.
• Principles and practices of data processing.

16.2



ACCOUNTS PAYABLE CLERK        2 

• Oral and written communication skills, including correct English usage, grammar, spelling and
vocabulary.

• Applicable laws, rules and regulations related to assigned activities.
• Mathematic calculations.
• Audit standards and record retention regulations.
• Operating various office machines, including a computer and assigned software.
• Telephone techniques and etiquette.
• Correct English usage, grammar, spelling, punctuation and mathematics.
• Modern office practices, procedures and equipment.

Ability to: 
• Perform a variety of clerical accounting and record-keeping duties in support of accounts

payable.
• Prepare and maintain accurate manual and automated financial and statistical records.
• Receive, review, verify and process invoices.
• Process and record accounting transactions accurately.
• Type or input data at an acceptable rate of speed.
• Operate standard office equipment including a computer and assigned software.
• Understand and follow oral and written instructions.
• Communicate effectively both orally and in writing.
• Add, subtract, multiply, and divide quickly and accurately.
• Establish and maintain effective working and cooperative relationships with others.
• Meet schedules and timelines.
• Use correct vocabulary and grammar.

Education and Experience: 

Required: Graduation from high school and two years of general clerical experience supplemented by 
coursework in introductory accounting, bookkeeping, purchasing procedures, business administration or 
a related field.   

Experience:  Two years of general office experience with accounts payable experience, preferably in an 
educational environment.  

Other Requirements: 
 Licenses:  Valid California Class C Driver’s License.  

PHYSICAL ELEMENTS AND WORKING CONDITIONS 
The work environment characteristics described here are representative of those an employee encounters 
while performing the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations may be made to enable 
individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions.  

• Dexterity of hands and fingers to operate a computer keyboard.
• Seeing to read a variety of materials.
• Hearing and speaking to exchange information.
• Sitting or standing for extended periods of time.
• Bending at the waist, kneeling or crouching to inspect shipments.
• Lifting, carrying, pushing and pulling moderately heavy objects.

16.3



ACCOUNTS PAYABLE CLERK        3 

WORKING CONDITIONS: 
• Indoor/Office environment.
• Constant interruptions.

16.4



1001 Presidio Square, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 · (714) 979-1955 · www.coastlinerop.net     Brian Dozer, Superintendent 

TO: Brian Dozer 

FROM: Siteria Edwards 

DATE:  March 1, 2023 

SUBJECT: Compensation Schedule Revision 

Issue:  

Upon board approval of the Accounts Payable Clerk position, the classified pay 
schedule of the compensation system will need to be revised.   

Recommendation: 

It is respectfully requested that the Board of Trustees approve the revision to the 
classified pay schedule of the compensation system to include the grant-funded 
Accounts Payable Clerk position.    

17.0



Upon employment by Coastline ROP, initial salary placement in all categories of service will be based on

education and related experience.  The Superintendent will determine the intial placement in the appropriate 

classification.

appropriate classification.

appropriate classification.

CERTIFICATED TEACHER PAY SCHEDULE:

Displays the minimum/maximum hourly rate range in the appropriate classification.

Displays the minimum/maximum daily rate and annual salary range based on 223 days of service in the 

appropriate classification.

LEADERSHIP PAY SCHEDULE:

Displays the minimum/maximum monthly and annual salary range based on 260 days of service in the 

CERTIFICATED SUPPORT PAY SCHEDULE:

Board Approved: 2/16/23

DRAFT

COMPENSATION SYSTEM

The compensation system of Coastline Regional Occupational Program pertains to all job classifications, 

both classifed and certificated.  The pay schedules include appropriate job titles and pay schedule range 

assignments.

PAY SCHEDULE INFORMATION

CLASSIFIED PAY SCHEDULE: 

Displays the minimum/maximum hourly and monthly rate range based on 260 days of service in the  

appropriate classification.

CLASSIFIED MANAGEMENT PAY SCHEDULE:  

Displays the minimum/maximum monthly and annual salary range based on 260 days of service in the 

17.1



JOB TITLE PAY

CLASSIFICATION (Min) (Max) (Min) (Max)

Accounting Budgeting Specialist 119 $25.69 $28.30 $4,453 $4,905

Accounting Payroll Specialist 119 $25.69 $28.30 $4,453 $4,905

Accounts Payable/Purchasing Specialist 119 $25.69 $28.30 $4,453 $4,905

Accounts Payable Clerk 118 $22.66 $27.61 $3,928 $4,786

Administrative Assistant 119 $25.69 $28.30 $4,453 $4,905

Career Specialist 120 $21.60 $29.01 na na

College and Career Specialist 120 $21.60 $29.01 na na

Executive Assistant 127 $32.23 $34.48 $5,587 $5,977

Facility Maintenance/ Receiving & Delivery Worker 114 $18.62 $25.02 na na

Information Technology Specialist 124 $23.84 $32.02 $4,132 $5,550

Instructional Assistant 108 $16.06 $21.57 na na

K-12 SWP Pathway Coordinator (Grant Funded) 131 $35.52 $47.60 $6,157 $8,251

Work-Based Learning/Outreach Specialist (Grant Funded) 130 $26.33 $37.14 $4,564 $6,438

Network Specialist 124 $23.84 $32.02 $4,132 $5,550

Program Assistant 119 $25.69 $28.30 $4,453 $4,905

Receptionist/Admnistrative Assistant 113 $18.02 $19.07 $3,123 $3,305

Student Information Specialist 119 $25.69 $28.30 $ $4453 $4,905

Classified Substitute $15.50 per hour

Classified Substitute (Career Specialist) $18.00 per hour

Skills Helper $15.50 per hour

Skills Helper (American Heart Association Certified Instructor) $20.00 per hour

MONTHLY RATEHOURLY RATE

OTHER CLASSIFIED PAY INFORMATION

CLASSIFIED PAY SCHEDULE

17.2



JOB TITLE PAY

CLASSIFICATION (Min) (Max) (Min) (Max)

Manager, Technology Services 510 $6,158 $8,252 $73,890 $99,019

Page 02

MONTHLY RATE ANNUAL SALARY

CLASSIFIED MANAGEMENT PAY SCHEDULE

17.3



JOB TITLE
(Min) (Max)

American Heart Association (AHA) Instructor $30.00 n/a

CHAPERONE I (PARTIAL DAY) $50 DAY n/a

CHAPERONE II (FULL DAY) $100 DAY n/a

Mentor Teacher Regular hourly rate plus 5% n/a

Substitute Teacher I $33.00 n/a

Substitute Teacher II (long-term) plus 25% preparation time $33.00 + 25% prep n/a

Special Project Assignment $30.00 n/a

Teacher $36.43 $70.00

HOURLY RATE

CERTIFICATED TEACHER PAY SCHEDULE

Page 03

CERTIFICATED PAY RATE INFORMATION

American Heart Association Instructor - regular and substitute teachers for the ROP will be paid at the AHA hourly 
rate.

Chaperone I - teachers serving as a chaperone after regular school hours, shall receive the established flat rate for the 
remainder of the day.

Chaperone II - teachers serving as a chaperone on a non-school day in which no salary was earned shall receive the 
established flat rate for the entire day.  

Substitute Teaching  - teachers working as a substitute will be paid their established hourly pay rate.

Mentor Teacher  - teachers working as mentors will be paid their current hourly rate multiplied by five percent (5%). 

Substitute II (Long-term Substitute) - substitute teachers who work for a period of at least 20 consecutive teaching days 
in the same teaching assignment will receive the Substitute Teacher II (long-term) rate. 

Special Project Assignment - teachers will receive the special projects rate for non-instructional, staff development or 
special project assignments.

Preparation Time - the established preparation time percentage is twenty-five percent (25%). 

17.4



JOB TITLE PAY

CLASSIFICATION (Min) (Max) (Min) (Max)

(223 Work Days)

Administrator, Educational Services 513 $444.03 $514.02 $99,019 $114,627

Coordinator, Educational Services 512 $422.89 $489.54 $94,304 $109,168

Instructional Support/Media Specialist 507 $286.23 $383.57 $63,829 $85,536

Page 04

DAILY RATE ANNUAL SALARY

CERTIFICATED SUPPORT STAFF PAY SCHEDULE

17.5



JOB TITLE PAY

CLASSIFICATION (Min) (Max) (Min) (Max)

Administrator, Human Resources 515 $7,859 $10,531 $94,304 $126,376

Chief Business Official 520 $10,030 $13,441 $120,358 $161,292

Director, Business Services 519 $9,552 $12,801 $114,627 $153,612

Director, Educational Services 519 $9,552 $12,801 $114,627 $153,612

Superintendent 524 $12,191 $16,338 $146,296 $196,056

Page 05

LEADERSHIP PAY SCHEDULE

MONTHLY RATE ANNUAL SALARY

17.6



1001 Presidio Square, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 · (714) 979-1955 · www.coastlinerop.net     Brian K. Dozer, D.Mgt. Superintendent 

TO: Board of Trustees 

FROM: Sesar Morfin 

DATE:  February 28, 2023 

SUBJECT: Budget Adjustment:  Resolution No. 4/2022-2023 

Issue/Background.  When the 2022-2023 budget was developed, there were several 
assumptions that were made as it relates to the different revenue streams which 
Coastline ROP expected to receive.  We anticipate generating higher-than-expected 
interest earnings for the year.  This increase in revenue is being partially offset by a 
decrease in revenue to fund our career specialists’ positions.  Due to these changes, 
our overall revenue projection for the year needs to be increased.  

Financial Implication. This increase in net revenue will result in the increase of available 
reserves for Coastline ROP.  Resolution 4/2022-2023 delineates the reserve and 
expenditure codes to which funds are to be adjusted.  

Recommendation.  It is respectfully requested that the Board of Trustees approve 
resolution number 4/2022-2023 for positive adoption. 

Enclosure 

19.0



FUND ACCT # AMOUNT

01 8590 All Other State Revenue (6,106)
01 8660 Interest Income 60,000
01 8699 All Other Local Revenue 1,699
01 8781 All Other Transfers FR District (31,546)

24,047

FUND ACCT # AMOUNT

01 1000 Certificated Salaries 843
01 2000 Classified Salaries (16,598)
01 3000 Employee Benefits (20,255)
01 4000 Books & Supplies 0
01 5000 Services and Operational Expenses 0
01 6000 Capital Outlay 0
01 7310 Transfer of Indirect Costs 57
01 9790 Unassigned/Unappropriated 60,000

24,047

AYES

NOES

ABSENT

_______________________________________________________________

Total

Clerk/Secretary of the Board of Trustees

Total 

          NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED That pursuant to the above Education Code, The Governing 

RESERVE / EXPENDITURE

IN WITNESS OF THE ABOVE STATED ACTION, I have hereunto set my hand this 9th day of March, 2023.  

Board with a majority vote has approved such increase in revenue to be designated as follows:

RESERVE / INCOME

Number 4/2022-2023

COASTLINE REGIONAL OCCUPATIONAL PROGRAM
ORANGE COUNTY, CALIFORNIA

DISTRICT 95

 RESOLUTION to Budget Revenue

         Whereas the Board of Trustees has determined that revenue in the amount of $24,047 is more than the amount 
originally budgeted for the current fiscal year from sources listed in Section 42610 of the Education Code of California 
as follows:

19.1



1001 Presidio Square, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 · (714) 979-1955 · www.coastlinerop.net     Brian K. Dozer, D.Mgt. Superintendent 

TO: Board of Trustees 

FROM: Sesar Morfin 

DATE:  February 28, 2023 

SUBJECT: Budget Transfer:  Resolution No. 5/2022-2023 

Issue/Background.  When the 2022-2023 budget was developed, there were several 
assumptions that were made as it relates to our projected expenditures which include 
salaries, benefits, supplies, etc.  Our projected expenditures are less than was originally 
projected so an adjustment in expenditures must be made to our budget.  This decrease 
in expenditures is primarily due to salary and benefits savings due to personnel 
changes. 

Financial Implication.  The decrease in the expenditure projection in conjunction with the 
increased net revenue projection will result in the increase of available reserves for 
Coastline ROP.  Resolution 5/2022-2023 delineates the reserve and expenditure codes 
to which funds are to be adjusted.  

Recommendation.  It is respectfully requested that the Board of Trustees approve 
resolution number 5/2022-2023 for positive adoption. 

Enclosure 

20.0



FROM TO
FUND ACCT # DESCRIPTION AMOUNT FUND ACCT # DESCRIPTION AMOUNT

01 3200 PERS 7,187.00$   01 1100 Teachers' Salaries 3,566.00$   
01 3400 Health Benefits 24,580.00$   01 1900 Other Certificated Salaries 10,927.00$   
01 5200 Travel-Conference 52,492.00$   01 2200 Classified Support Salaries 10,319.00$   
01 5300 Dues & Memberships 854.00$   01 2900 Other Classified Salaries 741.00$   
01 5800 Professional-Consult and Oper. 4,100.00$   01 3100 STRS 2,648.00$   
01 7310 Indirect Costs 57.00$   01 3300 Medicare/OASDI 965.00$   
01 9790 Unassigned/Unappropriated 12,537.00$     01 3500 State Unemployment Ins. 115.00$   

01 3600 Workers' Compensation Ins. 718.00$   
01 4300 Books & Supplies 13,411.00$   
01 4400 Non-Cap Equipment 4,543.00$   
01 5400 Insurance 7,610.00$   
01 5500 Operations & Housekeeping 700.00$   
01 5900 Communications 304.00$   
01 6400 Equipment 45,240.00$   

101,807$   101,807$   

IN WITNESS OF THE ABOVE STATED ACTION, I have hereunto set my hand this 9th day of March, 2023.

_______________________________________
Clerk/Secretary of the Board of Trustees

AYES 

NOES 

ABSENT 

COASTLINE REGIONAL OCCUPATIONAL PROGRAM
ORANGE COUNTY, CALIFORNIA

DISTRICT 95

 RESOLUTION TO TRANSFER FUNDS

Number 5/2022-2023

It has been resolved to make the budget transfers among the expenditure classifications and/or 
Unappropriated/Undesignated Reserves as listed below, within the General Fund, per Education Code 42600.

https://coastlinerop.sharepoint.com/sites/Private/Shared Documents/FISCAL/Budget & Projections NEW/Board Reports/2022-23/09 March/Resolution 5 2022-2023 Budget Transfer
20.1



1001 Presidio Square, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 · (714) 979-1955 · www.coastlinerop.net     Brian K. Dozer, D.Mgt. Superintendent 

TO: Board of Trustees 

FROM: Sesar Morfin 

DATE:  February 28, 2023 

SUBJECT: Signature Authorizations:  Resolution No. 6/2022-2023 

Issue/Background.  Coastline ROP had personnel changes in the Business Services 
department which created a need to update the authorized signatures for the 
organization.   

Resolution 6/2022-2023 signature authorization for certain business functions, adds 
Rosalba L. Kovatch, Accounting/Budgeting Specialist, as an authorized signer for 
payroll documents, vendor payments, and purchase orders.  This signature 
authorization is needed should the Superintendent and the Director of Business 
Services not be able to authorize these specific documents.    

Financial Implication.  There are no financial implications. 

Recommendation.  It is respectfully requested that the Board of Trustees approve 
resolution number 6/2022-2023 for positive adoption. 

Enclosure 

21.0



AUTHORIZATION OF SIGNATURES 

Resolution Number _________________ 

SCHOOL DISTRICT DATE:  

I,   , Clerk of the governing Board of the above named School District 
of Orange County, California, hereby certify that the said Board at a regular/special meeting thereof, 
held on the day of   , 2 adopted by a majority vote of said 
Board, a board action/resolution that the following named persons be authorized to sign and/or 
electronically approve payments and documents related to Payroll, Purchase Orders, Contracts, 
Travel Reimbursement Requisitions, and Vendor Orders, as indicated, and that all previous 
authorization of signatures are rescinded. This resolution further states that the authorization is 
subject to the following provisions: 

AUTHORIZED TO APPROVE 

NAME TYPED SIGNATURE 
PAYROLL 

DOCUMENTS 
VENDOR 
PAYMENT 
ORDERS 

PURCHASE 
ORDERS CONTRACTS TRAVEL 

REIMBURSEMENTS 

Pursuant to provisions of Education Code sections 42630-34/85230-34. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand this  day of , 2  . 

Clerk: 

Rev. 01/18 
21.1



COASTLINE REGIONAL OCCUPATIONAL PROGRAM 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

Minutes 
February 16, 2023 

The Board of Trustees of Coastline Regional Occupational Program met in regular session on 
February 16, 2023, in the boardroom at 1001 Presidio Square, Costa Mesa, California. The 
meeting was called to order at 8:45 a.m. by Michelle Barto. 

Present Members Other 
Michelle Barto Brian Dozer Ulises Garcia Siteria Edwards David McNeil 
Suzie Swartz J. S. Coke Keith Carmona Jeanne Bennett Melissa Milgrim 
Bonnie Castrey Sesar Morfin James Newton Rachel Kreger Annalee Mendoza 
Lauren Brooks Debbie Ludwig Grant Litfin James Piccola Alexa Hartenberg 
Jonathan Stone Rocky Murray Krista Ganga Courtney Jacobs Ravdeep Singh 

CLOSED SESSION There was nothing to report out of closed session. Open session 
convened at 9:30 a.m. 

ADOPTION OF 
AGENDA 

It was moved by Member Brooks, seconded by Member Castrey, to 
adopt the agenda as presented. Motion carried 5-0.  

SUPERINTENDENT’S 
REPORT 

We have been focusing our marketing efforts on CTE Month and 
raising awareness of ROP and CTE classes in each district. Dr. 
Dozer thanked the Board of Trustees and their Boards for allowing 
him to speak at their meetings. Dr. Dozer attended the Orange 
County Board of Supervisors meeting on February 7. Coastline 
ROP was presented with a CTE Month proclamation by Chairman 
Don Wagner and Supervisor Katrina Foley. 

J. S. Coke, Director, Educational Services, has announced his 
retirement at the end of June. Mr. Coke has been a dedicated 
educator for over 35 years and has impacted the lives of 
thousands of students. He has spent the last 7 of those years in his 
role at Coastline ROP, leading Educational Services during some 
very challenging times, including the unprecedented disruptions 
caused by the Covid 19 pandemic. For Dr. Dozer, he has been a 
very patient, thoughtful guide during his first year with the 
organization. While Dr. Dozer has worked with Mr. Coke in some 
fashion over the last seven years, collaborating with him over the 
previous year has shown him what a thoughtful, insightful, 
empathetic, and wonderful human he is. He will be missed, and we 
wish him well as he heads to his next destination at the end of this 
academic year.  

The position of educational services has been posted, and we 
hope to have identified a candidate by May so there can be an 
overlap with Mr. Coke before his departure.  

The logos we received from students for our competition have 
been judged. It is great to see our students' creativity and quality of 22.0



EDUCATIONAL      
SERVICES’ REPORT 

work. The winning logo designer will receive a $500 scholarship, 
and the logo will be used in select social media, events, and other 
ways going forward. The designer will be honored at the student 
showcase. A full presentation of the top logos is planned by our 
staff at the March board meeting, where the Board of Trustees will 
help us select the winning design.  

A CNA Adult Ed class will launch this Spring. The target date is 
April 17. After our market research into other offerings and labor 
market needs, we believe this is the best option for restarting our 
adult education efforts. While initially, the program will require 
some small subsidies (approximately $250 per student) to keep the 
price competitive; this will allow us to apply for adult ed funding 
next year to offset that cost. We are exploring multiple options for 
Summer and Fall as well. We also are working on the tech sales 
class and have a plan that is being formulated to launch that next 
Spring.  

Last year the Board of Trustees approved funds to translate the 
Labor Market Study into Spanish and Vietnamese. Dr. Dozer 
reported that the Spanish version is complete, and the Vietnamese 
version will be finalized next week.  

On the legislative front, assembly bill 377 was submitted recently 
by multiple authors. It is similar to AB 2058 last year and seeks to 
combine CTEIG and SWP grants into one grant totaling $450 
million per year administered by the California Department of 
Education. The legislative advocate for CAROCP spoke about it at 
the quarterly meeting and believes that, given the broad bipartisan 
support, it will ultimately become law next Fall. Dr. Dozer will join 
CAROCP for legislative meetings in Sacramento in March to 
discuss this and other potential legislation affecting Coastline ROP. 
He will update the Board of Trustees at the April board meeting.  

On January 27, all our CNA students passed the State test for their 
certification. Each year, skilled nursing facilities contact us with job 
openings for full-time positions with benefits. We are excited about 
the doors now opening for these students.  

The Gene HAAS foundation has provided two grants for our 
engineering program at Estancia High School: $2,500 for the UCI 
Energy Invitational and $15,000 for student scholarships. We are 
grateful for their long-term support of this program.  

Exhibit days were held for five schools and were attended by 2,100 
students. Each exhibit day was well received by the district, and 
they were happy with the activities. We have seven more exhibit 
days fully scheduled and six more in progress. ROP staff were 
present for each one to interact with students. We are happy with 
the results and believe we need to continue working at middle 
schools to introduce students to ROP and CTE classes.  

22.1



AB 361 – BROWN ACT 
AMENDMENT 

BOARD MEETING 
CALENDAR 2023 

Costa Mesa High School’s Career Specialist Arianna Nagy has 
had great success planning lunch and learn events for her 
students. On February 6, 25 students attended, and engagement 
was high. Students asked questions and got advice from two 
panelists: Amit Ghandhi, Physical Therapist, Costa Mesa Physical 
Therapy, and Jose Sanchez, Athletic Trainer, Santa Ana College. 
She reported, “It was so great to provide a positive experience for 
our students and see them so involved in the discussion. We can’t 
wait to do it all again next week.” On February 13, 50 students 
came to hear from 3 panelists: Christy Campo, CHOC Child Life 
Specialist; Andrew Schwagerl, Speech Language Pathologist; and 
Kerri Arkilic, ENC Nature Preschool Assistant Director. Students 
asked incredible questions, were beyond respectful, and engaged 
in learning. Students came up afterward and continued to interact 
with the panelists. 

There are two ways courses can receive UC approval: One is that 
it is a new submission, and the second is that it is adopted from 
another institution. We are happy to report that MIRE (Medical 
Innovations, Research, and Entrepreneurship) has been adopted 
as a UC-G, and Emergency Medical Technician has been adopted 
as a UC-D. We submitted Foods, and it has been approved as a 
UC-G elective.  

Typically, internships are provided after school for ROP students. 
For the first time, we have students in the Careers with Children 
Internship pathway at Costa Mesa High School interning at the 
district pre-k, and t-k sites before their high school classes begin. 
This is an innovative partnership between the ROP and the 
Newport-Mesa Unified School District. We thank the Newport- 
Mesa Unified School District college and career coordinator Lisa 
Snowden, Michelle O’Neill, Early Learning Coordinator, and ROP 
administrator Krista Schweers-Ganga for building this amazing 
program over the last couple of years.  

The day’s presentation was unique in that we shared about a 
program that consists of three courses represented by three 
schools. Mr. Coke welcomed Courtney Jacobs, Sports Medicine 
Teacher at Marina High School, David McNeil, Advanced Sports 
Medicine teacher at Costa Mesa High School, and Melissa Milgrim, 
Sports Medicine Internship Teacher at Creekside High School to 
share about this fantastic program. They were accompanied by 
three of their students: Alexa Hartenberg – Marina High School; 
Ravdeep Singh, and Annalee Mendoza – Costa Mesa High 
School. 

There was no action taken. 

There was no action taken. 

22.2



SALARY 
ADJUSTMENT 

TEXTBOOK 
APPROVAL 

APPRENTICESHIP 
EMPLOYER 
ACCEPTANCE 
AGREEMENT 

MISSION STATEMENT 

CONSENT CALENDAR 

It was moved by Member Castrey, seconded by Member Brooks, 
to approve an adjustment to the salaries for identified employees. 
Motion carried 5-0. 

It was moved by Member Swartz, seconded by Member Brooks, to 
approve the new and or revised 2022-2023 textbook list as 
presented. Motion carried 5-0. 

It was moved by Member Stone, seconded by Member Castrey, to 
approve the employer acceptance agreement as presented. Motion 
carried 5-0. 

It was moved by Member Brooks, seconded by Member Castrey, 
to reaffirm the current ROP Mission Statement approved on March 
11, 2021. Motion carried 5-0. 

It was moved by Member Brooks, seconded by Member Swartz, to 
approve the Consent Calendar as presented. Motion carried 5-0.  

• Minutes from January 19, 2023, Board of Trustees meeting
• Ratification of purchase order report ending January 31,

2023
• Ratification of check report ending January 31, 2023
• Retainer agreement between Coastline ROP and the law

offices of Atkinson, Andelson, Loya, Ruud & Romo to
provide legal services effective February 1, 2023 – January
31, 2025

• BERT Workplace Safety Solutions agreement for services
• Field trip request for Estancia Medical Academy students

from Estancia High School to attend the annual Cal-HOSA
2023 State Leadership Conference in Sacramento, CA, on
March 22 – 26, 2023

• Field trip request for Portola High School Broadcast News
students to attend the Student Television Network
Broadcast & Film convention in Long Beach, CA, on March
16 – 19, 2023

• Field trip requests for Newport Harbor High School Culinary
Arts students to attend the California ProStart Cup
competition in Long Beach, CA, on March 7 – 8, 2023, and
the FCCLA State Leadership Conference in Riverside, CA,
on April 22 – 25, 2023

• Healthcare support staff externship training agreement
• Huntington Beach Chamber of Commerce membership in

the amount of $375
• New internship site
• English language learner waiver teacher roster
• Personnel Register #7 – 2022-2023 (Approval of employee

appointments, release, retirements, terminations, leaves,
transfers, promotions, stipends, additional/overtime
assignments) 22.3



ADJOURNMENT    

• Approval of travel and conference report

It was moved by Member Barto, seconded by Member Brooks, to 
adjourn the meeting. Motion carried 5-0.  

The meeting adjourned at 10:02 a.m. 

__________________________________ 
Clerk/Secretary 

22.4



N
U

M
B

E
R

A
C

C
O

U
N

T
A

C
C

O
U

N
T

P
SE

U
D

O
 / 

O
B

JE
C

T
 D

E
SC

R
IP

T
IO

N
A

M
O

U
N

T
T

O
T

A
L

V
E

N
D

O
R

F
R

O
M

02
/0

1/
20

23
T

O
02

/2
8/

20
23

B
O

A
R

D
 O

F
 T

R
U

ST
E

E
S 

M
E

E
T

IN
G

03
/0

9/
20

23

C
O

A
ST

L
IN

E
 R

.O
.P

.
P

U
R

C
H

A
SE

 O
R

D
E

R
 D

E
T

A
IL

 R
E

P
O

R
T

P
O

P
O

N
U

M
B

E
R

V
an

 D
er

 M
er

w
e/

O
V

H
S 

H
B

U
H

SD
 C

7 
/ M

A
T

E
R

IA
L

S 
&

01
33

05
00

03
 4

30
0

A
M

A
Z

O
N

14
1.

76
S9

5C
04

92
14

1.
76

R
iz

za
/H

A
A

S 
E

ng
in

ee
ri

ng
 C

om
pe

ti 
/ M

A
T

E
R

IA
L

S 
&

01
66

63
0 

43
00

W
W

W
.M

O
T

IO
N

.C
O

M
13

3.
45

S9
5C

04
93

13
3.

45

M
ur

ph
y/

PH
S 

IU
SD

 C
T

E
IG

 7
 / 

M
A

T
E

R
IA

L
S 

&
 S

U
PP

L
IE

S
01

22
08

00
04

 4
30

0
B

 &
 H

 P
H

O
T

O
96

4.
85

S9
5C

04
94

96
4.

85

Jo
ne

s/
M

us
ic

 T
ec

h 
SW

P 
R

2 
T

us
 / 

C
O

N
T

R
 S

V
C

S/
IA

01
66

81
9 

58
15

T
U

ST
IN

 U
N

IF
IE

D
 S

C
H

O
O

L
 D

IS
T

R
IC

T
45

,0
00

.0
0

S9
5C

04
95

45
,0

00
.0

0

Iv
er

se
n/

A
dm

in
is

tr
at

iv
e 

A
ss

t. 
/ O

ff
ic

e 
Su

pp
lie

s-
C

on
su

m
ab

le
01

70
24

50
 4

33
0

A
M

A
Z

O
N

24
.7

9
S9

5C
04

96
24

.7
9

M
itc

he
ltr

ee
  R

O
P 

N
M

U
SD

 / 
O

ff
ic

e 
Su

pp
lie

s-
C

on
su

m
ab

le
01

11
06

00
06

 4
33

0
A

M
A

Z
O

N
35

.5
5

S9
5C

04
97

35
.5

5

A
ya

la
/C

H
S 

IU
SD

 C
T

E
IG

 7
 / 

M
A

T
E

R
IA

L
S 

&
 S

U
PP

L
IE

S
01

22
01

00
13

 4
30

0
A

M
A

Z
O

N
1,

93
9.

18
S9

5C
04

98
1,

93
9.

18

M
is

ic
h 

A
ut

o/
L

H
H

S 
SV

U
SD

 C
T

E
IG

 7
 / 

M
A

T
E

R
IA

L
S 

&
01

44
02

00
06

 4
30

0
H

A
R

B
O

R
 F

R
E

IG
H

T
21

9.
52

S9
5C

04
99

21
9.

52

B
ro

w
n/

T
H

H
S 

SV
U

SD
 C

T
E

IG
 7

 / 
M

A
T

E
R

IA
L

S 
&

 S
U

PP
L

IE
S

01
44

05
00

05
 4

30
0

A
M

A
Z

O
N

15
0.

74
S9

5C
05

00
15

0.
74

L
.E

be
rh

/N
W

H
S 

C
ar

ee
r 

Sp
ec

ia
lis

t /
 O

ff
ic

e 
Su

pp
lie

s-
01

74
26

93
 4

33
0

A
M

A
Z

O
N

16
4.

56
S9

5C
05

04
65

.8
3

L
.E

be
rh

/W
oo

db
ri

dg
e 

C
ar

ee
r 

Sp
ec

 / 
O

ff
ic

e 
Su

pp
lie

s-
01

74
27

54
 4

33
0

98
.7

3

M
ilg

ri
m

/C
H

S 
IU

SD
 C

T
E

IG
 7

 / 
M

A
T

E
R

IA
L

S 
&

 S
U

PP
L

IE
S

01
22

01
00

14
 4

30
0

M
E

D
C

O
 S

U
P

P
L

Y
 C

O
M

P
A

N
Y

2,
72

3.
61

S9
5C

05
05

2,
72

3.
61

D
ok

es
, A

nn
et

te
/E

ST
 N

M
U

SD
 / 

O
ff

ic
e 

Su
pp

lie
s-

C
on

su
m

ab
le

01
11

04
00

07
 4

33
0

Z
A

Z
Z

L
E

.C
O

M
3.

21
S9

5C
05

06
3.

21

D
oz

er
/S

up
er

in
te

nd
en

t /
 O

ff
ic

e 
Su

pp
lie

s-
C

on
su

m
ab

le
01

76
09

33
 4

33
0

A
M

A
Z

O
N

48
.4

8
S9

5C
05

07
48

.4
8

Sh
or

t-
B

ak
er

/L
H

H
S 

SV
U

SD
 / 

N
O

N
 C

A
P 

E
Q

U
IP

 -
01

44
02

00
02

 4
41

0
A

M
A

Z
O

N
41

8.
45

S9
5C

05
08

41
8.

45

St
ud

en
t S

er
vi

ce
s 

/ O
ff

ic
e 

Su
pp

lie
s-

C
on

su
m

ab
le

01
73

00
00

 4
33

0
A

M
A

Z
O

N
22

.6
0

S9
5C

05
10

22
.6

0

R
iz

za
/H

A
A

S 
E

ng
in

ee
ri

ng
 C

om
pe

ti 
/ M

A
T

E
R

IA
L

S 
&

01
66

63
0 

43
00

A
M

A
Z

O
N

40
7.

00
S9

5C
05

11
40

7.
00

R
iz

za
/H

A
A

S 
E

ng
in

ee
ri

ng
 C

om
pe

ti 
/ M

A
T

E
R

IA
L

S 
&

01
66

63
0 

43
00

E
L

E
C

T
R

IC
SC

O
O

T
E

R
P

A
R

T
S.

C
O

M
50

0.
28

S9
5C

05
12

50
0.

28

R
iz

za
/H

A
A

S 
E

ng
in

ee
ri

ng
 C

om
pe

ti 
/ M

A
T

E
R

IA
L

S 
&

01
66

63
0 

43
00

H
O

M
E

 D
E

P
O

T
68

.8
8

S9
5C

05
13

68
.8

8

R
iz

za
/H

A
A

S 
E

ng
in

ee
ri

ng
 C

om
pe

ti 
/ M

A
T

E
R

IA
L

S 
&

01
66

63
0 

43
00

W
W

W
.R

O
L

L
B

A
R

P
A

D
D

IN
G

.C
O

M
67

.8
8

S9
5C

05
14

67
.8

8

R
iz

za
/H

A
A

S 
E

ng
in

ee
ri

ng
 C

om
pe

ti 
/ M

A
T

E
R

IA
L

S 
&

01
66

63
0 

43
00

P
R

O
F

O
X

R
A

C
IN

G
.C

O
M

42
5.

87
S9

5C
05

15
42

5.
87

R
iz

za
/H

A
A

S 
E

ng
in

ee
ri

ng
 C

om
pe

ti 
/ M

A
T

E
R

IA
L

S 
&

01
66

63
0 

43
00

B
M

I 
K

A
R

T
S 

&
 P

A
R

T
S

42
5.

93
S9

5C
05

16
42

5.
93

R
iz

za
/H

A
A

S 
E

ng
in

ee
ri

ng
 C

om
pe

ti 
/ M

A
T

E
R

IA
L

S 
&

01
66

63
0 

43
00

G
O

K
A

R
T

SU
P

P
L

Y
.C

O
M

82
.9

7
S9

5C
05

17
82

.9
7

SX
M

O
R

F
<

V
er

. 0
20

70
3>

PO
01

0
Pa

ge
 N

o.
:

1
C

ur
re

nt
 D

at
e:

03
/0

1/
20

23
08

:0
7:

54
C

ur
re

nt
 T

im
e:

23.0



N
U

M
B

E
R

A
C

C
O

U
N

T
A

C
C

O
U

N
T

P
SE

U
D

O
 / 

O
B

JE
C

T
 D

E
SC

R
IP

T
IO

N
A

M
O

U
N

T
T

O
T

A
L

V
E

N
D

O
R

F
R

O
M

02
/0

1/
20

23
T

O
02

/2
8/

20
23

B
O

A
R

D
 O

F
 T

R
U

ST
E

E
S 

M
E

E
T

IN
G

03
/0

9/
20

23

C
O

A
ST

L
IN

E
 R

.O
.P

.
P

U
R

C
H

A
SE

 O
R

D
E

R
 D

E
T

A
IL

 R
E

P
O

R
T

P
O

P
O

N
U

M
B

E
R

R
iz

za
/H

A
A

S 
E

ng
in

ee
ri

ng
 C

om
pe

ti 
/ M

A
T

E
R

IA
L

S 
&

01
66

63
0 

43
00

A
M

A
Z

O
N

49
.4

9
S9

5C
05

18
49

.4
9

H
ar

te
l-

H
O

SA
 C

T
E

IG
-7

 N
M

U
SD

 / 
C

O
N

T
R

 S
V

C
S 

- 
FI

E
L

D
01

98
26

2 
58

25
D

O
U

B
L

E
T

R
E

E
 B

Y
 H

IL
T

O
N

 H
O

T
E

L
12

,5
86

.9
5

S9
5C

05
20

12
,5

86
.9

5

M
ai

ns
ite

/S
ch

oo
l A

dm
in

 F
27

00
 / 

IN
T

E
R

N
E

T
-B

A
SE

D
01

91
09

10
 5

88
9

G
R

E
E

N
V

E
L

O
P

E
26

5.
00

S9
5C

05
21

26
5.

00

A
ll 

In
st

ru
ct

io
n 

01
05

 (
63

50
) 

/ O
ff

ic
e 

Su
pp

lie
s-

C
on

su
m

ab
le

01
64

82
00

 4
33

0
A

M
A

Z
O

N
12

9.
77

S9
5C

05
22

64
.8

8

M
ai

ns
ite

/S
ch

oo
l A

dm
in

 F
27

00
 / 

O
ff

ic
e 

Su
pp

lie
s-

C
on

su
m

ab
le

01
91

09
10

 4
33

0
64

.8
9

M
ai

ns
ite

 O
pe

ra
tio

ns
/0

10
5 

/ S
U

PP
L

IE
S 

- 
B

L
D

G
01

91
09

50
 4

37
0

A
M

A
Z

O
N

20
.4

5
S9

5C
05

23
20

.4
5

Sc
hw

ee
rs

-G
an

ga
/A

dm
in

 E
D

U
 S

rv
cs

 / 
O

ff
ic

e 
Su

pp
lie

s-
01

65
90

01
 4

33
0

A
M

A
Z

O
N

39
.9

5
S9

5C
05

24
39

.9
5

Sc
hw

ee
rs

-G
an

ga
/A

dm
in

 E
D

U
 S

rv
cs

 / 
O

ff
ic

e 
Su

pp
lie

s-
01

65
90

01
 4

33
0

A
M

A
Z

O
N

28
.9

7
S9

5C
05

25
28

.9
7

V
an

 D
er

 M
er

w
e/

C
H

S 
C

T
E

IG
 7

 / 
M

A
T

E
R

IA
L

S 
&

 S
U

PP
L

IE
S

01
22

01
00

11
 4

30
0

A
M

A
Z

O
N

11
4.

14
S9

5C
05

26
11

4.
14

M
ar

ke
tin

g-
St

ud
en

t R
ec

ru
itm

en
t /

 O
ff

ic
e 

Su
pp

lie
s-

C
on

su
m

ab
le

01
79

80
00

 4
33

0
A

M
A

Z
O

N
13

2.
06

S9
5C

05
27

13
2.

06

Pi
cc

ol
a/

C
oo

rd
in

at
or

 I
ns

tr
uc

to
r 

/ I
nt

er
ne

t -
 S

of
tw

ar
e/

L
ic

en
se

01
60

20
05

 5
88

8
Z

O
O

M
 V

ID
E

O
 C

O
M

M
U

N
IC

A
T

IO
N

S 
IN

C
1,

04
9.

30
S9

5C
05

28
14

9.
90

Pe
re

z/
M

ed
ia

 S
pe

ci
al

is
t /

 I
nt

er
ne

t -
 S

of
tw

ar
e/

L
ic

en
se

s
01

60
80

10
 5

88
8

37
.4

8

Pe
re

z/
In

st
r 

Su
pp

or
t S

pe
c 

/ I
nt

er
ne

t -
 S

of
tw

ar
e/

L
ic

en
se

s
01

65
30

12
 5

88
8

11
2.

42
C

ok
e/

D
ir

ec
to

r,
 E

D
U

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
/ I

nt
er

ne
t -

 S
of

tw
ar

e/
L

ic
en

se
s

01
65

80
00

 5
88

8
14

9.
90

Sc
hw

ee
rs

-G
an

ga
/A

dm
in

 E
D

U
 S

rv
cs

 / 
In

te
rn

et
 -

01
65

90
01

 5
88

8
14

9.
90

A
sr

ar
-W

B
L

/O
ut

re
ac

h 
Sp

ec
ia

lis
t /

 I
nt

er
ne

t -
 S

of
tw

ar
e/

L
ic

en
se

s
01

71
22

0 
58

88
14

9.
90

D
oz

er
/S

up
er

in
te

nd
en

t /
 I

nt
er

ne
t -

 S
of

tw
ar

e/
L

ic
en

se
s

01
76

09
33

 5
88

8
14

9.
90

M
ai

ns
ite

/S
ch

oo
l A

dm
in

 F
27

00
 / 

In
te

rn
et

 -
 S

of
tw

ar
e/

L
ic

en
se

s
01

91
09

10
 5

88
8

14
9.

90

M
ur

ph
y/

PH
S 

IU
SD

 C
T

E
IG

 7
 / 

C
O

N
T

R
 S

V
C

S 
- 

FI
E

L
D

 T
R

IP
S

01
22

08
00

04
 5

82
5

T
R

A
N

SP
O

R
T

A
T

IO
N

 C
H

A
R

T
E

R
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
1,

15
4.

00
S9

5T
05

03
1,

15
4.

00

D
ok

es
, A

nn
et

te
/E

ST
 N

M
U

SD
 / 

M
A

T
E

R
IA

L
S 

&
 S

U
PP

L
IE

S
01

11
04

00
07

 4
30

0
H

O
M

E
 D

E
P

O
T

5,
00

0.
00

S9
5X

05
01

5,
00

0.
00

Ja
sp

er
so

n 
E

dw
ar

d/
E

ST
 N

M
U

SD
 / 

M
A

T
E

R
IA

L
S 

&
 S

U
PP

L
IE

S
01

11
04

00
06

 4
30

0
H

O
M

E
 D

E
P

O
T

5,
00

0.
00

S9
5X

05
02

5,
00

0.
00

Fe
rn

an
de

z-
B

oc
an

eg
ra

/R
O

P 
N

M
U

SD
 /

01
11

06
00

00
 5

89
1

D
E

P
T

 O
F

 T
O

X
IC

 S
U

B
ST

A
N

C
E

S
22

3.
58

S9
5X

05
09

11
1.

79

B
ur

ns
/R

O
P 

N
M

U
SD

 / 
T

A
X

E
S/

FE
E

S/
PE

R
M

IT
S

01
11

06
00

01
 5

89
1

11
1.

79

M
ai

ns
ite

 O
pe

ra
tio

ns
/0

10
5 

/ O
T

H
E

R
 C

O
N

T
R

A
C

T
E

D
01

91
09

50
 5

89
0

Q
U

E
E

N
 B

E
E

 D
R

Y
 C

L
E

A
N

E
R

S
50

0.
00

S9
5X

05
19

50
0.

00

80
,2

63
.2

2
F

un
d 

01
 T

ot
al

:

SX
M

O
R

F
<

V
er

. 0
20

70
3>

PO
01

0
Pa

ge
 N

o.
:

2
C

ur
re

nt
 D

at
e:

03
/0

1/
20

23
08

:0
7:

54
C

ur
re

nt
 T

im
e:

23.1



N
U

M
B

E
R

A
C

C
O

U
N

T
A

C
C

O
U

N
T

P
SE

U
D

O
 / 

O
B

JE
C

T
 D

E
SC

R
IP

T
IO

N
A

M
O

U
N

T
T

O
T

A
L

V
E

N
D

O
R

F
R

O
M

02
/0

1/
20

23
T

O
02

/2
8/

20
23

B
O

A
R

D
 O

F
 T

R
U

ST
E

E
S 

M
E

E
T

IN
G

03
/0

9/
20

23

C
O

A
ST

L
IN

E
 R

.O
.P

.
P

U
R

C
H

A
SE

 O
R

D
E

R
 D

E
T

A
IL

 R
E

P
O

R
T

P
O

P
O

N
U

M
B

E
R

80
,2

63
.2

2
T

ot
al

 A
m

ou
nt

 o
f 

P
ur

ch
as

e 
O

rd
er

s:

23.2



N
U

M
B

E
R

A
C

C
O

U
N

T
02

/2
8/

20
23

T
O

02
/0

1/
20

23
F

R
O

03
/0

9/
20

23

P
SE

U
D

O
 / 

O
B

JE
C

T
 D

E
SC

R
IP

T
IO

N
N

U
M

B
E

V
E

N
D

O
R

A
M

O
U

N
T

C
H

A
N

G
E

B
O

A
R

D
 O

F
 T

R
U

ST
E

E
S

P
O

P
O

P
U

R
C

H
A

SE
 O

R
D

E
R

 D
E

T
A

IL
 R

E
P

O
R

T
 -

 C
H

A
N

G
E

 O
R

D
E

R
S

C
O

A
ST

L
IN

E
 R

.O
.P

.

T
O

T
A

L

Z
im

m
er

m
an

/F
ir

e 
SW

P 
R

ou
nd

2 
R

O
P 

/ M
A

T
E

R
IA

L
S 

&
A

E
D

 O
N

E
 S

T
O

P
 S

H
O

P
-3

91
.8

6
01

66
83

9 
43

00
1,

78
9.

00
S9

5C
04

01

M
ar

ke
tin

g-
St

ud
en

t R
ec

ru
itm

en
t /

 O
ff

ic
e 

Su
pp

lie
s-

C
on

su
m

ab
le

A
M

A
Z

O
N

-2
.1

5
01

79
80

00
 4

33
0

30
.1

6
S9

5C
04

62

M
ul

le
n/

N
W

H
S 

IU
SD

 / 
M

A
T

E
R

IA
L

S 
&

 S
U

PP
L

IE
S

SM
A

R
T

 &
 F

IN
A

L
+

1,
50

0.
00

01
22

03
00

00
 4

30
0

3,
50

0.
00

S9
5X

01
50

A
ll 

In
st

ru
ct

io
n 

01
05

 (
63

50
) 

/ E
Q

U
IP

 M
A

IN
T

K
Y

O
C

E
R

A
 D

O
C

U
M

E
N

T
 S

O
L

U
T

IO
N

S 
W

E
S

+
3,

00
0.

00
01

64
82

00
 5

66
5

10
,9

45
.7

3
S9

5X
01

73

In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

T
ec

hn
ol

og
y 

F-
77

00
 / 

E
Q

U
IP

 M
A

IN
T

+
3,

00
0.

00
01

78
09

40
 5

66
5

7,
10

5.
99

F
un

d 
01

 T
ot

al
:

7,
10

5.
99

T
ot

al
 A

m
ou

nt
 o

f 
C

ha
ng

e 
O

rd
er

s:

03
/0

1/
20

23
C

ur
re

nt
 D

at
e:

Pa
ge

 N
o.

:
1

C
ur

re
nt

 T
im

e:
<

R
ev

. 0
70

30
3>

08
:1

2:
37

23.3



24.0



R
ef

er
en

ce
Su

bs
P

ay
ee

 I
D

P
ay

ee
 N

am
e

C
he

ck
C

he
ck

 D
at

e
C

an
ce

l D
at

e
St

at
us

C
he

ck
 A

m
ou

nt

fr
om

 2
/1

/2
02

3 
to

 2
/2

8/
20

23

C
O

A
ST

L
IN

E
 R

.O
.P

.
C

on
so

lid
at

ed
 C

he
ck

 R
eg

is
te

r

T
yp

e
01

26
23

B
E

N
N

E
T

T
O

H
B

E
N

N
E

T
T

, J
E

A
N

N
E

V
95

00
77

4
00

03
23

31
95

 0
2/

02
/2

02
3

M
W

IS
24

7.
72

26
21

41
O

H
C

C
C

A
O

E
V

95
01

47
4

00
03

23
32

95
 0

2/
02

/2
02

3
M

W
IS

69
5.

00
10

04
77

O
H

C
O

A
ST

L
IN

E
 R

O
P 

R
E

V
O

L
V

IN
G

 C
A

SH
 F

V
95

00
04

5
00

03
23

33
95

 0
2/

02
/2

02
3

M
W

IS
34

.4
8

15
97

2
O

H
C

O
ST

A
 M

E
SA

 C
H

A
M

B
E

R
 O

F 
C

O
M

M
E

R
C

E
V

95
01

02
1

00
03

23
34

95
 0

2/
02

/2
02

3
M

W
IS

37
5.

00
01

30
23

D
O

Z
E

R
O

H
D

O
Z

E
R

, B
R

IA
N

V
95

02
42

5
00

03
23

35
95

 0
2/

02
/2

02
3

M
W

IS
1,

96
7.

86
28

70
90

47
20

01
O

H
O

FF
IC

E
 D

E
PO

T
V

95
03

87
5

00
03

23
36

95
 0

2/
02

/2
02

3
M

W
IS

13
8.

92
C

M
36

12
3

O
H

O
N

T
A

R
IO

 R
E

FR
IG

E
R

A
T

IO
N

V
95

02
45

4
00

03
23

37
95

 0
2/

02
/2

02
3

M
W

IS
82

2.
49

01
27

23
PE

R
E

Z
O

H
PE

R
E

Z
, A

L
E

X
V

95
00

94
2

00
03

23
38

95
 0

2/
02

/2
02

3
M

W
IS

37
.6

2
43

62
0

O
H

R
E

A
L

IT
Y

W
O

R
K

S.
C

O
M

V
95

02
10

5
00

03
23

39
95

 0
2/

02
/2

02
3

M
W

IS
7,

09
5.

54
34

70
1/

72
6

O
H

SM
A

R
T

 &
 F

IN
A

L
V

95
00

65
1

00
03

23
40

95
 0

2/
02

/2
02

3
M

W
IS

22
1.

07
15

88
56

79
7

O
H

U
L

IN
E

V
95

01
81

5
00

03
23

41
95

 0
2/

02
/2

02
3

M
W

IS
83

5.
36

00
19

70
19

0
O

H
A

M
E

R
IC

A
N

 H
E

A
R

T
 A

SS
O

C
IA

T
IO

N
V

95
00

23
0

00
03

23
42

95
 0

2/
07

/2
02

3
M

W
IS

2,
85

3.
95

R
O

P1
.1

20
23

O
H

D
r.

 B
ra

nd
ee

 R
am

ir
ez

V
95

02
52

4
00

03
23

43
95

 0
2/

07
/2

02
3

M
W

IS
2,

10
9.

00
07

53
04

93
O

H
IN

G
A

R
D

IA
 B

R
O

S 
PR

O
D

U
C

E
 I

N
C

V
95

02
29

3
00

03
23

44
95

 0
2/

07
/2

02
3

M
W

IS
38

1.
87

23
02

01
45

24
O

H
IN

T
E

R
M

E
D

IA
.N

E
T

 I
N

C
V

95
02

38
2

00
03

23
45

95
 0

2/
07

/2
02

3
M

W
IS

88
3.

06
00

00
05

49
73

O
H

K
O

R
R

 M
ed

ic
al

 T
ec

hn
ol

og
ie

s 
In

c.
V

95
02

52
3

00
03

23
46

95
 0

2/
07

/2
02

3
M

W
IS

6,
56

1.
28

55
B

22
31

46
2

O
H

K
Y

O
C

E
R

A
 D

O
C

U
M

E
N

T
 S

O
L

U
T

IO
N

S 
W

E
S

V
95

02
45

3
00

03
23

47
95

 0
2/

07
/2

02
3

M
W

IS
14

.0
0

43
01

/3
75

O
H

SM
A

R
T

 &
 F

IN
A

L
V

95
00

65
1

00
03

23
48

95
 0

2/
07

/2
02

3
M

W
IS

38
7.

19
B

W
K

G
R

V
E

U
R

A
K

R
O

H
A

M
A

Z
O

N
V

95
01

26
9

00
03

23
49

95
 0

2/
08

/2
02

3
M

W
IS

25
,9

21
.1

8
O

O
PE

-
O

H
A

SR
A

R
, H

A
SA

N
V

95
02

24
5

00
03

23
50

95
 0

2/
09

/2
02

3
M

W
IS

75
.1

8
R

10
51

29
7

O
H

C
A

L
IC

O
 B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

V
95

02
32

5
00

03
23

51
95

 0
2/

09
/2

02
3

M
W

IS
2,

59
4.

50
G

H
52

00
6

O
H

C
D

W
 G

O
V

E
R

N
M

E
N

T
V

95
01

40
1

00
03

23
52

95
 0

2/
09

/2
02

3
M

W
IS

6,
83

2.
97

C
R

O
P-

02
03

23
O

H
C

O
A

ST
L

IN
E

 R
O

P 
R

E
V

O
L

V
IN

G
 C

A
SH

 F
V

95
00

04
5

00
03

23
53

95
 0

2/
09

/2
02

3
M

W
IS

40
4.

50
O

O
PE

07
05

22
D

O
Z

E
O

H
D

O
Z

E
R

, B
R

IA
N

V
95

02
42

5
00

03
23

54
95

 0
2/

09
/2

02
3

M
W

IS
68

.9
8

L
03

86
65

56
32

O
H

E
M

PL
O

Y
M

E
N

T
 D

E
V

E
L

O
PM

E
N

T
 D

E
PT

V
95

01
50

6
00

03
23

55
95

 0
2/

09
/2

02
3

M
W

IS
1,

67
4.

75
93

41
33

0
O

H
H

O
M

E
 D

E
PO

T
V

95
02

06
3

00
03

23
56

95
 0

2/
09

/2
02

3
M

W
IS

11
,4

29
.1

8
10

80
32

00
O

H
4I

M
PR

IN
T

, I
N

C
.

V
95

01
12

5
00

03
23

57
95

 0
2/

10
/2

02
3

M
W

IS
2,

33
9.

81
ID

 T
H

E
FT

 P
R

O
-

O
H

C
L

C
V

95
02

36
8

00
03

23
58

95
 0

2/
10

/2
02

3
M

W
IS

40
.0

0
10

01
70

2
O

H
H

A
R

B
O

R
 F

R
E

IG
H

T
V

95
01

06
8

00
03

23
59

95
 0

2/
10

/2
02

3
M

W
IS

27
4.

62
M

E
T

 L
IF

E
 I

N
S-

FE
B

O
H

M
E

T
R

O
PO

L
IT

A
N

 L
IF

E
 I

N
SU

R
A

N
C

E
 C

O
V

95
02

04
0

00
03

23
60

95
 0

2/
10

/2
02

3
M

W
IS

43
8.

04
C

M
38

95
9M

O
H

O
N

T
A

R
IO

 R
E

FR
IG

E
R

A
T

IO
N

V
95

02
45

4
00

03
23

61
95

 0
2/

10
/2

02
3

M
W

IS
69

5.
00

1/
9-

1/
30

PE
R

E
Z

O
H

PE
R

E
Z

, A
L

E
X

V
95

00
94

2
00

03
23

62
95

 0
2/

10
/2

02
3

M
W

IS
36

.1
6

K
A

IS
E

R
 -

 F
E

B
O

H
R

E
E

P 
FO

R
 B

E
N

E
FI

T
S

V
95

01
35

0
00

03
23

63
95

 0
2/

10
/2

02
3

M
W

IS
27

,6
96

.7
8

1/
05

-1
/2

6R
U

IZ
O

H
R

ui
z,

 A
ar

on
V

95
02

50
0

00
03

23
64

95
 0

2/
10

/2
02

3
M

W
IS

18
.0

8

03
/0

1/
20

23

08
:5

5:
27

B
K

30
05

: C
on

so
lid

at
ed

 C
he

ck
 R

eg
is

te
r

C
ur

re
nt

 D
at

e:

C
ur

re
nt

 T
im

e:

SX
M

O
R

F 
- 

Se
sa

r 
M

or
fi

n
U

se
r:

R
ep

or
t:

P
ag

e

1

24.1



R
ef

er
en

ce
Su

bs
P

ay
ee

 I
D

P
ay

ee
 N

am
e

C
he

ck
C

he
ck

 D
at

e
C

an
ce

l D
at

e
St

at
us

C
he

ck
 A

m
ou

nt

fr
om

 2
/1

/2
02

3 
to

 2
/2

8/
20

23

C
O

A
ST

L
IN

E
 R

.O
.P

.
C

on
so

lid
at

ed
 C

he
ck

 R
eg

is
te

r

T
yp

e
13

40
2

O
H

SE
C

U
R

E
 L

IV
E

 S
C

A
N

V
95

01
86

9
00

03
23

65
95

 0
2/

10
/2

02
3

M
W

IS
81

0.
00

01
/2

4V
A

N
 D

E
R

O
H

V
A

N
 D

E
R

 M
E

R
W

E
, R

O
C

H
E

L
L

E
V

95
02

27
1

00
03

23
66

95
 0

2/
10

/2
02

3
M

W
IS

31
.6

7
SI

22
18

03
71

O
H

A
M

E
R

IC
A

N
 3

B
 S

C
IE

N
T

IF
IC

V
95

02
25

8
00

03
23

67
95

 0
2/

14
/2

02
3

M
W

IS
2,

74
0.

93
D

O
Z

-Z
N

6U
IC

O
H

C
A

R
O

C
P

V
95

00
44

1
00

03
23

68
95

 0
2/

14
/2

02
3

M
W

IS
20

0.
00

O
O

PE
-

O
H

C
O

K
E

, J
O

H
N

 S
.

V
95

01
87

6
00

03
23

69
95

 0
2/

14
/2

02
3

M
W

IS
70

7.
49

R
S4

87
54

29
O

H
C

O
R

O
D

A
T

A
 R

E
C

O
R

D
S 

M
A

N
A

G
E

M
E

N
T

 I
N

V
95

02
01

1
00

03
23

70
95

 0
2/

14
/2

02
3

M
W

IS
13

4.
72

60
85

21
O

H
JO

N
E

S 
&

 B
A

R
T

L
E

T
T

 L
E

A
R

N
IN

G
 L

L
C

V
95

01
78

5
00

03
23

71
95

 0
2/

14
/2

02
3

M
W

IS
24

,3
64

.9
4

35
76

44
82

63
O

H
O

'R
E

IL
L

Y
 A

U
T

O
 P

A
R

T
S

V
95

01
47

5
00

03
23

72
95

 0
2/

14
/2

02
3

M
W

IS
76

0.
03

06
05

-0
00

95
60

76
O

H
R

A
IN

B
O

W
 D

IS
PO

SA
L

 C
O

 I
N

C
V

95
04

45
7

00
03

23
73

95
 0

2/
14

/2
02

3
M

W
IS

39
1.

23
A

B
21

8_
30

74
12

0-
A

2
O

H
SC

H
O

O
L

S 
E

X
C

E
SS

 L
IA

B
IL

IT
Y

 F
U

N
D

V
95

02
34

9
00

03
23

74
95

 0
2/

14
/2

02
3

M
W

IS
7,

61
0.

32
87

00
1/

59
2

O
H

SM
A

R
T

 &
 F

IN
A

L
V

95
00

65
1

00
03

23
75

95
 0

2/
14

/2
02

3
M

W
IS

1,
02

8.
70

12
63

09
10

10
20

12
3

O
H

T
IM

E
 W

A
R

N
E

R
 C

A
B

L
E

V
95

01
49

9
00

03
23

76
95

 0
2/

14
/2

02
3

M
W

IS
1,

88
9.

28
P/

53
51

5
O

H
T

R
A

N
SP

O
R

T
A

T
IO

N
 C

H
A

R
T

E
R

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

V
95

00
45

8
00

03
23

77
95

 0
2/

14
/2

02
3

M
W

IS
2,

11
2.

50
1/

10
-1

/2
7A

SR
A

R
O

H
A

SR
A

R
, H

A
SA

N
V

95
02

24
5

00
03

23
78

95
 0

2/
16

/2
02

3
M

W
IS

24
.7

6
10

79
/1

00
47

8
O

H
C

O
A

ST
L

IN
E

 R
O

P 
R

E
V

O
L

V
IN

G
 C

A
SH

 F
V

95
00

04
5

00
03

23
79

95
 0

2/
16

/2
02

3
M

W
IS

11
.2

8
16

88
82

O
H

Fi
re

 S
af

et
y 

U
SA

, I
N

C
.

V
95

02
52

2
00

03
23

80
95

 0
2/

16
/2

02
3

M
W

IS
26

,6
26

.4
0

12
31

76
05

O
H

M
IC

R
O

 C
E

N
T

E
R

 A
/R

V
95

00
07

1
00

03
23

81
95

 0
2/

16
/2

02
3

M
W

IS
31

6.
73

1/
03

-1
/3

1M
IS

IC
H

O
H

M
IS

IC
H

, T
H

O
M

A
S

V
95

02
18

4
00

03
23

82
95

 0
2/

16
/2

02
3

M
W

IS
42

.3
1

28
50

75
O

H
N

O
R

T
H

E
R

N
 O

C
 S

E
L

F 
W

C
 A

G
E

N
C

Y
V

95
00

14
8

00
03

23
83

95
 0

2/
16

/2
02

3
M

W
IS

6,
83

2.
00

SC
H

-N
A

IP
24

O
H

O
R

A
N

G
E

 C
O

U
N

T
Y

 D
E

PA
R

T
M

E
N

T
 O

F 
E

D
V

95
00

13
4

00
03

23
84

95
 0

2/
16

/2
02

3
M

W
IS

20
0.

00
1/

09
-1

/3
0P

E
R

E
Z

O
H

PE
R

E
Z

, A
L

E
X

V
95

00
94

2
00

03
23

85
95

 0
2/

16
/2

02
3

M
W

IS
36

.1
6

O
O

PE
-

O
H

SC
H

W
E

E
R

S-
G

A
N

G
A

, K
R

IS
T

A
V

95
01

47
2

00
03

23
86

95
 0

2/
16

/2
02

3
M

W
IS

98
.0

6
B

16
34

75
10

O
H

SH
I 

IN
T

E
R

N
A

T
IO

N
A

L
 C

O
R

P
V

95
01

71
4

00
03

23
87

95
 0

2/
16

/2
02

3
M

W
IS

9,
12

1.
82

18
60

1/
48

2
O

H
SM

A
R

T
 &

 F
IN

A
L

V
95

00
65

1
00

03
23

88
95

 0
2/

16
/2

02
3

M
W

IS
41

.2
8

O
O

PE
-

O
H

V
A

N
 D

E
R

 M
E

R
W

E
, R

O
C

H
E

L
L

E
V

95
02

27
1

00
03

23
89

95
 0

2/
16

/2
02

3
M

W
IS

62
.4

6
20

0
O

H
C

A
L

IF
O

R
N

IA
 T

A
C

T
IC

 P
A

T
R

O
L

V
95

00
94

8
00

03
23

90
95

 0
2/

22
/2

02
3

M
W

IS
1,

36
5.

00
O

O
PE

-
O

H
C

O
K

E
, J

O
H

N
 S

.
V

95
01

87
6

00
03

23
91

95
 0

2/
22

/2
02

3
M

W
IS

88
.7

4
41

74
62

40
O

H
FI

R
ST

-C
IT

IZ
E

N
S 

B
A

N
K

 &
 T

R
U

ST
 C

O
V

95
02

46
9

00
03

23
92

95
 0

2/
22

/2
02

3
M

W
IS

1,
22

7.
46

07
53

44
55

O
H

IN
G

A
R

D
IA

 B
R

O
S 

PR
O

D
U

C
E

 I
N

C
V

95
02

29
3

00
03

23
93

95
 0

2/
22

/2
02

3
M

W
IS

1,
13

6.
10

O
O

PE
-

O
H

K
R

E
G

E
R

, R
A

C
H

E
L

V
95

01
32

1
00

03
23

94
95

 0
2/

22
/2

02
3

M
W

IS
56

.9
8

51
74

75
84

O
H

M
C

K
E

SS
O

N
 G

E
N

E
R

A
L

 M
E

D
IC

A
L

 C
O

R
P

V
95

01
82

1
00

03
23

95
95

 0
2/

22
/2

02
3

M
W

IS
33

3.
95

29
00

21
90

30
01

O
H

O
FF

IC
E

 D
E

PO
T

V
95

03
87

5
00

03
23

96
95

 0
2/

22
/2

02
3

M
W

IS
62

.1
4

39
80

1/
72

6
O

H
SM

A
R

T
 &

 F
IN

A
L

V
95

00
65

1
00

03
23

97
95

 0
2/

22
/2

02
3

M
W

IS
72

9.
87

17
20

5
O

H
Sm

ar
t T

oo
ls

 P
lu

s 
L

L
C

V
95

02
50

8
00

03
23

98
95

 0
2/

22
/2

02
3

M
W

IS
2,

84
0.

01

03
/0

1/
20

23

08
:5

5:
27

B
K

30
05

: C
on

so
lid

at
ed

 C
he

ck
 R

eg
is

te
r

C
ur

re
nt

 D
at

e:

C
ur

re
nt

 T
im

e:

SX
M

O
R

F 
- 

Se
sa

r 
M

or
fi

n
U

se
r:

R
ep

or
t:

P
ag

e

2

24.2



R
ef

er
en

ce
Su

bs
P

ay
ee

 I
D

P
ay

ee
 N

am
e

C
he

ck
C

he
ck

 D
at

e
C

an
ce

l D
at

e
St

at
us

C
he

ck
 A

m
ou

nt

fr
om

 2
/1

/2
02

3 
to

 2
/2

8/
20

23

C
O

A
ST

L
IN

E
 R

.O
.P

.
C

on
so

lid
at

ed
 C

he
ck

 R
eg

is
te

r

T
yp

e
18

93
O

H
T

H
E

 B
R

A
N

D
 H

A
B

IT
 L

L
C

V
95

02
16

4
00

03
23

99
95

 0
2/

22
/2

02
3

M
W

IS
6,

65
1.

11
99

26
89

96
62

O
H

V
E

R
IZ

O
N

 W
IR

E
L

E
SS

V
95

00
42

2
00

03
24

00
95

 0
2/

22
/2

02
3

M
W

IS
26

6.
07

94
72

O
H

F 
&

 M
 C

re
di

t C
ar

d
V

95
02

32
6

00
03

24
01

95
 0

2/
28

/2
02

3
M

W
IS

8,
41

0.
40

21
5,

56
4.

04
Is

su
ed

:
21

5,
56

4.
04

B
an

k 
T

ot
al

:
95

21
5,

56
4.

04
G

ra
nd

 T
ot

al
:

03
/0

1/
20

23

08
:5

5:
27

B
K

30
05

: C
on

so
lid

at
ed

 C
he

ck
 R

eg
is

te
r

C
ur

re
nt

 D
at

e:

C
ur

re
nt

 T
im

e:

SX
M

O
R

F 
- 

Se
sa

r 
M

or
fi

n
U

se
r:

R
ep

or
t:

P
ag

e

3

24.3



25.0



25.1



26.0



BOARD UPDATE 
March 1, 2023 

EMPLOYEE PERSONNEL REGISTER NO. 8 – 2022-2023 

It is recommended that the Board approve the following personnel actions: 

EMPLOYMENT: 

Name: Gregory Spradlin 
Position: Teacher 
Program: Digital Media Arts 
Location: Trabuco Hills H.S. 
Effective: February 22, 2023 

Name: Raymond Endow 
Position: Teacher 
Program: Administration of Justice 
Program: Crime Scene Investigation 
Location: Creekside H.S. 
Effective February 24, 2023 

_______________________________ 
   Brian K. Dozer 

27.0


	AGENDA
	03 Agenda March 9, 2023.pdf
	COASTLINE REGIONAL OCCUPATIONAL PROGRAM

	15.1 Chief Business Official - job description.pdf
	Coastline Regional Occupational Program               Job Description
	QUALIFICATION GUIDELINES
	PHYSICAL ELEMENTS AND WORKING CONDITIONS

	16.1 Accounts Payable Clerk -  final (2-23).pdf
	PHYSICAL ELEMENTS AND WORKING CONDITIONS

	19.1 Resolution 4 2022-2023 Budget Adjustment.pdf
	RES 

	20.1 Resolution 5 2022-2023 Budget Transfer.pdf
	RES 5

	27. Board Update - March 2023.pdf
	BOARD UPDATE
	EMPLOYEE PERSONNEL REGISTER NO. 8 – 2022-2023


	Resolution Number: #6/2022-2023
	SCHOOL DISTRICT: Coastline Regional Occupational Program
	DATE: March 9, 2023
	I: 
	held on the: 9th
	day of:  March
	2: 023
	NAME TYPEDRow1: Brian K. Dozer
	SIGNATURERow1: 
	PAYROLL DOCUMENTSRow1: X
	VENDOR PAYMENT ORDERSRow1: X
	PURCHASE ORDERSRow1: X
	CONTRACTSRow1: X
	TRAVEL REIMBURSEMENTSRow1: X
	NAME TYPEDRow2: Sesar Morfin
	SIGNATURERow2: 
	PAYROLL DOCUMENTSRow2: X
	VENDOR PAYMENT ORDERSRow2: X
	PURCHASE ORDERSRow2: X
	CONTRACTSRow2: X
	TRAVEL REIMBURSEMENTSRow2: X
	NAME TYPEDRow3: John S. Coke
	SIGNATURERow3: 
	PAYROLL DOCUMENTSRow3: X
	VENDOR PAYMENT ORDERSRow3: 
	PURCHASE ORDERSRow3: 
	CONTRACTSRow3: 
	TRAVEL REIMBURSEMENTSRow3: 
	NAME TYPEDRow4: Rosalba L. Kovatch
	SIGNATURERow4: 
	PAYROLL DOCUMENTSRow4: X
	VENDOR PAYMENT ORDERSRow4: X
	PURCHASE ORDERSRow4: X
	CONTRACTSRow4: 
	TRAVEL REIMBURSEMENTSRow4: 
	NAME TYPEDRow5: Siteria Edwards
	SIGNATURERow5: 
	PAYROLL DOCUMENTSRow5: X
	VENDOR PAYMENT ORDERSRow5: 
	PURCHASE ORDERSRow5: 
	CONTRACTSRow5: 
	TRAVEL REIMBURSEMENTSRow5: 
	NAME TYPEDRow6: 
	SIGNATURERow6: 
	PAYROLL DOCUMENTSRow6: 
	VENDOR PAYMENT ORDERSRow6: 
	PURCHASE ORDERSRow6: 
	CONTRACTSRow6: 
	TRAVEL REIMBURSEMENTSRow6: 
	NAME TYPEDRow7: 
	SIGNATURERow7: 
	PAYROLL DOCUMENTSRow7: 
	VENDOR PAYMENT ORDERSRow7: 
	PURCHASE ORDERSRow7: 
	CONTRACTSRow7: 
	TRAVEL REIMBURSEMENTSRow7: 
	IN WITNESS WHEREOF I have hereunto set my hand this: 9th
	day of_2:  March
	2_2: 023
	Clerk: 


